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The U.8. Securities & Exchange Commission
100 F Street, NE
Washington, D.C, 20549.

Rae: African Development Bank

Ladies & Genlemen:

Enciosed please find eight copies of a Report dated February 25, 2008, of the
African Development Bank, which is filed under Rule 3 of Regulation AFDB with

respect to the Bank's 2.750% Global Notes due February 25, 2011

Very truly yours,
A :
185
Pierre van Peteghem
Director, Treasury Department

{Enclosures)

cc.  Cffice of International Corporate Finance
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
100 F Street, N.E.

Washington, D.C. 20549

REPORT OF

AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

In respect of its

USD 500,000,000 2.750% Global Notes due February 25, 2011

Filed pursuant to Rule 3 of Regulation AFDB

Dated: KFebruary 25, 2008
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The following information regarding the 2.750% Global Notes due February 25, 2011

(herein referred to as the "Notes") of the African Development Bank (the "Bank") is

being filed pursuant to Rule 3 of Regulation AFDB. As authorized by Rule 4(d) of

Regulation AFDB, certain information is provided in the form of a Pricing Supplement

(attached hereto as Exhibit A) and an Information Memorandum (attached hereto as

Exhibit B).

[tem 1. Description of Obligations
(a) through (h)

t)

See the Information Memoranduin, pages 10-23, and the
Pricing Supplement, cover page and pages 2-7.

Federal Reserve Bank of New York, 33 Liberty Street,
New York, New York 10045.

Item 2. Distribution of Obligations

(a)

(b)

DC_LANOI1:230307.3

See the Pricing Supplement, cover page and under the
caption "Distribution" on page 6.

On February 22, 2008 the Bank entered into a
Subscription Agreement with BNP Pariba.; and Morgan
Stanley & Co. International PLC (herein collectively
referred to as the "Managers"), upon the terms set forth in
said Subscription Agreement (attached hereto as
Exhibit C), |

In connection with the issue and distribution of the Notes,
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BNP Paribas (the “Stabilising Manager”) (or any person
acting for the Stabilising Manager) may over-allot Notes or
effect transactions with a view to supporting the price of
the Notes at a level higher than that which might otherwise
prevail. However, there is no assurance that the Stabilising
Manager (or any agent of the Stabilising Manager) wiil
undertake stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may
begin at any time after the date on which adequate public
disclosure of the terms of the Notes is made and, if begun,
may be ended at any time, but it must end no later than the
earlier of 30 days after the issue date of the Notes and 60
days after the date of the allotment of the Notes. Any
stabilisation action or over-atlotment must be conducted by
the Stabilising Manager {(or any person acting for the
Stabilising Manager) in accordance with all applicable laws
and rules. The Managers acknowledge that the Bank has
not authorised the issue of the Notes of a principal amount
exceeding USD 500,000,000.

Not applicable.




Item 3. Distribution Spread

Selling
Discounts
" Price to and Proceeds to
the Public Commissions the Bank*
Per Unit 99.840% 0.075% 99.765%
Total $499,200,000 $375,000 ) $498,825,000

Item 4. Discounts and Commissions to Sub-Underwriters and Dealers

Combined management and ﬁnderwriting commission and selling
concession of 0.075% of the principal amount.

Item 5. Other Expenses of the Distribution

The Bank reports, as of the date hereof, the following item:
Rating Fees** : $146,000
Total $146,000

Item 6. Application of Proceeds |

See the Information Memorandum page 24.

* Without deducting expenses of the Bank.

** The Rating Fees are an estimate based on a weighted average of the transaction
against the authorized 2008 Borrowing Programme.
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[tem 7. Exhibits

A, Copy of Pricing Supplement, dated February 22, 2008.
Copy of Information Memorandum, dated July 6, 2007.

Copy of Subscription Agreement, dated February 22, 2008.

o 0 w

Copy of Opinion dated February 25, 2008, of the Acting
General Counsel and Director Legal Services Department
of the Bank, as to the legality of the Notes.
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Pricing Supplement dated February 22, 2008
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AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

Global Debt issuance Facility

for issues of Notes with maturities of one day or longer

Issue of USD 500,000,000
2.750% Giobal Notes due February 25, 2011

Series Number: 323

Issue price; 99.840 per cent.

BNP Paribas

Morgan Stanley



This document {Pricing Supplement’) is issued 0 give details of an 1ssue of Notes (the “Notes’
by the African Development Bank {the "Bank"} under its Globai Debt Issuance Facility.

This Pricing Supplement supplements information set forth in the Information Memorandum dated
8 July 2007, which is made a part hereof as if set forth herein and all documents incorporated by
reference therein {collectively, the "Infermation Memorandum”), and must be read in conjunction with the
nformation Memaorandum,

This Pricing Supplement does not constitute. and may not be used for the purposes of. an offer or
salicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is nol authorized or to any
person to whom it is unlawful to make such cffer or soficitation, and no action is being taken to permit an
offering of the Notes or the distribution of this Pricing Supplement in any jurisdiction where such action is
required.

THE NOTES ARE NOT REQUIRED TO BE AND HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UUNDER THE
U.5. SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED. THE NOTES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR
DISAPPROVED BY THE U.5. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE
SECURITIES COMMISSION NOR HAS THE U.5. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR
ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THE
INFORMATION MEMORANDUM OR THIS PRICING SUPPLEMENT. ANY REPRESENTATION TO THE
CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE,

THE DISTRIBUTION OF THIS PRICING SUPPLEMENT OR THE INFORMATION
MEMORANDUM AND THE OFFERING OR SALE OF THE NOTES IN CERTAIN JURISDICTIONS MAY
BE RESTRICTED BY LAW. PERSONS INTO WHOSE POSSESSION THIS PRICING SUPPLEMENT
OR THE INFORMATION MEMORANDUM COMES ARE REQUIRED BY THE BANK AND THE
MANAGERS TO INFORM THEMSELVES ABOUT AND TQ OBSERVE ANY SUCH RESTRICTION.
FOR A DESCRIPTION OF CERTAIN RESTRICTIONS ON OFFERS AND SALES OF NOTES AND ON
DISTRIBUTION OF THIS PRICING SUPPLEMENT OR THE INFORMATION MEMORANDUM SEE
“SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE” IN THE INFORMATION MEMORANDUM.

THE NOTES ARE NOT OBLIGATIONS OF ANY GOVERNMENT.

D _LAND Jioldn s



DESCRIPTION OF THE NOTES

The USD 500,000,000 2.750% Global Notes due February 25, 2011 {the “Notes™ constitute
Seres Number 323 under the Global Debt lssuance Facility of the Bank. Interest on the Notes at a rate
of 2.750 per cent. per annum will accrue from and including February 25, 2008 to but exciuding their date
of maturity and will be payable in U § doliars ("USD"} on each February 25 and August 25 of each year,
commencing August 25, 2008.

The Notes will be lisled on the regulaled market of the Luxemnbourg Stock Exchange.

Criginal Issuance

On original issuance, all Notes will be issued as Book-entry Notes through the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York and held by certain financial institutions as Holding Institutions and as depositories for
Euroclear Bank S.A/MNV. ("Euvrociear’), and Clearstream Banking, société anonyme {"Clearstream,
Luxembourg”). After original issuance, all Book-entry Notes will cantinue to be held by such Helding
Institutions and will not be exchangeable for Notes in definitive form. The terms “Book-entry Notes” and
“Holding Institutions® are defined under “Terms and Conditions of the Notes™ below.

Book-entry System

The Federat Reserve Bank of New York, as Fiscal Agent, will take delivery of and hold Book-entry
Notes as record owner and custodian for Holding Institutions located in the Second Federal Reserve
District. Holding Institutions located in other Federal Reserve Districts can hold Book-entry Notes through
their respectiva Federal Reserve Bark or Branch. Transfers of Book-entry Motes between Holding
Instituions can be made through the Federal Reserve Book-entry Systemn.

The aggregate holdings of Bock-entry Notes of each Holding institution will be reflected in the
book-entry account of such Holding Institution with its Federal Reserve Bank or Branch. Each Holding
Institution, and each other intermediate holger in the chain to the ultimate beneficial owner, will have the
respansibility of establishing and maintaining accounts for its customers having interests in Book-entry
Notes. With respect to Book-entry Notes, Federal Reserve Banks will be responsible only for maintaining
the book-entry accounts of Holding Institutions, effecting transfers on the books of the Federal Reserve
Banks, ensuring that payments from the Bank, through the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, are
credited to appropriate Halding Institutions, transmilting to the Bank, through the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York, any notices received from hoiders of Book-entry Notes pursuant to the provisions described
under “Terms and Conditions of the Notes — 8 Repayment In the Event of Default” and transmitling to
Holding Institutions any notices required under any repurchase of redemptlion provisions of the Notes.
Federal Reserve Banks will act only on the instructions of Holding Institutions for which they maintain
Book-entry Notes. The Federal Raserve Banks will not record pledges of Book-entry Notes,

Tha Bank will not impose fees in respect of Book-entry Notes; however, owners of Book-entry

Notes may incur fees payable in respect of the maintenance and operation of the boak-entry accounts in
which such Book-entry Notes are held.

DO 3 ANs] JRn s



TERMS AND CONDITION OF THE NOTES

The foilowing text under this heading is the text of the terms and conditions that will apbly
to the Notes to which this Pricing Supplement refates, This text supersedes and repfaces the
section entitled “Terms and Conditions of the Notes™ in the information Memorandum in its

entirely.
1. Aggregate Principal Amount, Form and Denominations

Each Note is cne of an authorized issue of Notes in the aggregate principal amount of
USD 500.000.000 known as the “USD 500,000,000 2,750% Global Notes due February 25, 2011,

Notes will be originally issued and available only in uncertified book-entry form ("Book-entry
Notes"), in denominalions of USD 1,000 or any integral multiple thereof, Book-entry Notes will be
exchangeable in like aggregate principal amount without charge pursuant to the provisions of Condition 7,
“Exchanges and Transfers®.

2. Status, Negative Pledge and Undertaking

The Notes are not the cbligations of any government. The obligations deriving from the Notes
canstitute direct, unsecured and general obligations of the Bank. The Notes rank pan passu and without
any preference with all other unsecured obligations of the Bank, present and future, except to the extent
that any such other obligations are by their terms expressed to be subordinated in right of payment.

As long as any of the Notes shall remain outstanding and unpaid but only up to the time all
amounts of principal and, where appiicable, interest due in respect of the Notes have been placed at the
disposal of the fiscal agent for the Notes, the Bank will not cause or permit to be created on any of its
present or future property or assets any morigage, pledge or other lien or charge as security for any
bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness of a maturity of more than ane year heretofore or
hereafter issued, assumed or guaranteed by the Bank for money borrowed (other than purchase monegy
mortgages, pledges or other liens or charges on property purchased by the Bank as security for all or part
of the purchase price thereof), unless the Notes shall be secured by such mortgage, pledge or other lien
or charge so as {o rank par passu in peint of security and rateably with such other bonds, notes or other

evidences of indebtedness.

The Bank undertakes that. in the event of a call on the callable capital of the Bank, it will instruct
its members {0 make payments in satisfactian of such call into an account established with the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York (or its successor duly designated for the purpose) on terms that the proceeds
of any such call shall be applied in payment of, or provision for full settlement of, outstanding obligations
of the Bank incurred by i in the exercise of its powers to borrow and give guarantees (cther than such
abligations which by their terms are expressed to be subordinated in right of payment) before any other
payment shall be made with such proceeds. The Bank shali be entitled, without the consent of the
nolders of the Notes, 1o agree o any amendments to the agreement between the Bank and the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York (or its successor duly designated for the purpose) relating to the
establishment of the said account provided that such amendments are not inconsistent with the foregoing

undertaking.

Do Lane] Dinlted
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3. Payments of Principal and Interest

The principal of and interest on the Notes will be payable at a designated office or agency of the
Bank in New York City in sutch coin or currency of the United States of America as at the tme of payment
is legal tender for public and private debls ("U.S. dollars” or "USD"); provided that, at the Bank's option,
principal of and interest cn Book-entry Notes may be paid by credit to Federal Reserve Bank of Branch
accounts of Holding institutions (as defined below) holding such Book-entry Notes (including as
deposilories for Eurociear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. for the benefit of holders of Notes through
Eurociear and Clearstream, Luxembourg, respectively). A “Holding Institution” 1s a depository or other
designated institution thal has an appropriate book-entry account with 2 Federa! Reserve Bank or Branch.
The Federal Reserve Bank of New York, 33 Liberty Street, New York, New York 10045, will act as the
Bank's fiscal agent {the *Fiscal Agent”) for the Notes pursuant to a Uniform Fiscal Agency Agreement.

If any date for payment in respect of any Note is not a day on which the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York is open for business {a "Federa! Reserve Business Day"}, the holder thereaof shall not be
entitted to payment until the next following Federal Reserve Business Day. and no further interest shall be
paid in respect of the delay in such payment.

The Notes will bear interesl from and including February 25, 2008-to but excluding their date of
maturity at the rate of 2.750% per annum, payable in arrears on each February 25 and August 25 of each
year, commencing August 25, 2008. Shauld the Bank fail to redeem the Notes when due, interest shall
not cease to accrue but shall continue to accrue until the actual redemption of the Notes but not beyond
the ffteenth day after a publication is made by the Fiscal Agent to the effect that the necessary funds for
redemption have been provided to the Fiscal Agent. Where intergst is to be calculated in respect of a
period of other than one year, it will be calculated on the basis of @ 360 day year of 12 months of 30 days
each.

4, Redemption and Purchase

Unless previously purchased and cancelled, the Notes will be redeemad by the Bank at maturity
on February 25, 2011 at 100 per cent. of their principal amount (i.e., par). The Notes are not redeemable
prior to maturity. The Bank may at any lime purchase Notes at any price in the open market or otherwise.
Notes purchased by the Bank may be surrendered for cancellation.

5. Title

The Bank may deem and treat the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, in respect of all Book-
entry Notes. as the absoclute owner thereof for all purposes whatsoever notwithstanding any notice to the
<ontrary; and all payments to or on the order of the Federal Reserve Bank of New York and such
registered owner, respectively. shall be vaiid and effectual to discharge the liability of the Bank upon the
Book-entry Motes to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. As custodian of Book-eniry Notes, the
Federal Reserve Bank of New York may deem and treat the other Federal Reserve Banks and Branchas,
and Hoiding Institutions focated in the Second Federal Reserve District, holding any Bock-entry Note as
ihe absolute owner thereof for alt purposes whalsoever nopwithstanding any natice to the contrary: and all
sayments 16 or on the order of such Federal Reserve Banks or Branches or Holding Institutions, as the
case may be, will be valid and effectual to discharge the responsibility of the Federal Reserve Bank of
New York with respect to such Book-entry Note (o the extent of the sum or sums so paid.

-4
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6. Record Date

The record date for the purpose of payment of interest or principal on the Nctes shalf be as of the
close of business at the Federal Reserve Bank of New York on the day preceding any intarest payment
date for holders of Book-entry Notes, If any such day is not a Federal Resarve Business Day. the record
date shall be the next preceding Federal Reserve Business Day.

7. Exchanges and Transfers

Soaok-entry Notes may be transferred between Holding Institutions, in Federal Reserve Districts
where the respective Federal Reserve Banks have adopted appropriate procedures, in accordance with
such procedures. Transfers of Book-entry Notes between holders through Euroclear or Clearstream,
Luxembourg, and holders through Holding institutions will be effected through the book-entry accounts of
the Holding institutions with the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, thereby increasing or decreasing
each Holding institution’s respective holdings of the Notes on behalf of Euroclear or Ciearstream,
Luxembourg, Notes may be transferred between participants within Eurcciear and within Clearstream,
Luxembourg, and between Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg paricipants, in accordance with
procedures established for this purpose from tinte to time by Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg.

8. Repayment in the Event of Default

Any holder of Notes may deliver or cause 1o be defivered (through the holder, if any, immediately

preceding it and any other intermediate holder in the chain to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, and
then through the Federal Reserve Bank of New York) to the Bank at its office in Tunis Balvedere, Tunisia
{with a copy to its principal office), written notice that such holder elects to declare the principal of all
Notes held by it (the CUSIP number and aggregate principal amount of which shall be set forth in such
notice) {o ba due and payable in the event that;

(a8) the Bank fails to pay the principal of or interest on any of the MNotes for a continuous
period of ninety days after the same shall have become due and payable, or

)] the Bank fails Yo perform its obligations under Condition 2, “Stalus, Negative Piedge and
Undertaking,” for a continuous period of ninety days: or

{c) any oiher bond, note or loan of a maturity of more than one year issued, assumed or
guaranieed by the Bank either (i} is declared due and payable prior to the due date for payment thereof
by reason of default by the Bank or (i} is not repaid at maturity as extended by the period of grace, if any,
applicable thereto and such default continues for ninety days;

and on the thirtieth day after such notice shall be so delivered to the Bank the principal of such Notes and
the accrued interest thereon shall become due and payable, unless priof to that lime ail such defaults
theretofore existing shall have been cured.

9. Notlces

All notices regarding the Notes shall be pubtished (a) so long as the Notes are listed on the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange, in a leading daily newspaper in the French, German ar English language
and of general circutation in Luxembourg and {b) in a leading daily newspaper in the English tanguage

-5-

AT _LaNpy 2w

12




and of general circutalion fn New York. [t is expected that such notices will normally be published in
o Wort in Luxembourg and The Wall Street Jourmalin New York.

10. Further issues

The Bank may from time to time without the consent of the holders of the Notes create and issue
furthes Notes so as lo be consolidated and form a single issue with the Notes.

11. Governing Law and Service of Process

The validity and the terms and conditions of the Notes will be governed by tha taw of the State of
New York. :

The Bank appoints CT Corporation System in The City of New York as its authorized agemt upon
which process may be served in any action arising out of or in connection with the issuance and sale of
the Notes which may be instituited in any court of competent jurisdiction in the State of New York., This
appointment wilt not be revoked so long as any of the Notes remain outstanding and payment thergof has
not been made or duly provided for, unless and untif there has been appointed a successor authorized
agent (which will be a bank or trust company or a recognized corporate services company having its
principal offices in the City and State ot New York) and such successor has accepted such appointment.

DISTRIBUTION

a. ()] If syndicated, names of
Managers: B8NP Paribas ‘
Morgan Stanfey & Co. international pic
(it} Stabilising Manager: BNP Paribas
{iff) Commissions and
Concessions: 0 075 per cent.
b. Additional selling restrictions: Not Applicable

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

a. 1SIN Code: Us008281ALMS
b. cusIp; 008281 AUt
6. Commen Code:; (34834862
G-
T 1 ANGL 1307303
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d, Defivery: Detivery against payment

e. Applicable TEFRA Rules: Not Applicable
f. Additional United States Federal
Income Tax Consequences, Not Applicable
g. issiie Date; February 25, 2008
STABILISING

In connection with the issue and distribution of the Notes, BNP Paribas (the “Stabilising
Manager) {or any person acting for the Stabilising Manager) may over-allot Notes or effect transactions
with a view to supporting the price of the Notes at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail.
However, there Is no assurance that the Stabilising Manager (or any agent of the Stabilising Manager) will
undertake stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may begin on or after the date on which adequate
public disclosure of the terms of the Notes is made and, if begun, may be ended at any time. but it must
end no later than the eartier of 30 days after the issus date of the Notes and 60 days after the date of the
allotment of the Notes. Any stabilisation action or over-allotment must be conducted by the Stabilising
Manager {or any person acting for the Stabilising Manager) in accordance with ail applicable laws and
rutes. The Managers acknowledge that the Bank has not authorised the issue of the Noles of a principat

"amount exceeding USD 500,000,000,

LISTING APPLICATION

This Pricing Supplement comprises the final terms required to list the issue of Notas described
herein pursuant to the Global Debt Issuance Facility of the African Development Bank.

RESPONSIBILITY

The tssuer accepts responsibility for the infarmation contained in this Pricing Supplement.

Signed on behaif of the (ssuer:

-—..M
By:
THIERRY DE LONGUEMAR
VICE PRESIDENT, FINANCE
Duly authorized

IH™ b vt 250l40 03
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INFORMATION MEMORANDUM

African Development Bank

Global Debt Issuance Facility

For issues of Notes with maturities of one day or longer

This Information Memorandum comprises neither a base prospectus for the purposes of Article 5.4
of Directive 2003/71/EC (the “Prospectus Directive”) nor a document for listing purposes under the
EuroMTF market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange but does comprise a base prospectus solely for the
purposes of the Luxembourg Law on prospectuses for securities insofar as it applies to exempt issuers
under Article 1(2)(b) of the Prospectus Directive. Application has been made to the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange for notes (the “Notes™) issued under the global debt issuance facility (the “Facility’”) described
in this Information Memorandum to be admitted to listing and trading on the regulated market of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange for a period of 12 months from the date hereof. The regulated market of
the Luxembourg Stock Exchange is the regulated market for the purposes of Directive 2004/39/EC on
Markets in Financial Instruments. This Information Memorandum supersedes and replaces the
Information Memorandum dated 30 June 2006.

Arranger
Citi

Dealers
Barclays Capital BNP PARIBAS
Citi Credit Suisse
Daiwa Securities SMBC Europe Dresdner Kleinwort
Goldman Sachs International HSBC
JPMorgan Lehman Brothers
Merriil Lynch International Mitsubishi UFJ Securities International plc
Mizuho International plc Morgan Stanley
Nomura International Société Générale Corporate & Investment Banking
Standard Bank Pic Standard Chartered Bank

TD Securities

Information Memorandum dated 6 July 2007




The African Development Bank (referred to herein as the *‘Bank”) represents that it has taken all
reasonable care to ensure that the information concerning the Bank contained in this Information
Memorandum is true and accurate in all material respects on the date of this Information Memorandum
and that as of the date hereof there are no other material facts in relation to the Bank the omission of which
would make misleading any statement herein, whether of fact or of opinion.

The Dealers have not independently verified the information contained herein. Accordingly, no
representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibitity or liability is
accepted by the Dealers as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained or incorporated in
this Information Memorandum or any other information provided by the Bank in connection with the

Programme.

No person is authorised to give any information or to make any representation not contained in the
Information Memorandum or any pricing supplement (each a *'Pricing Supplement”, referred to on page 9
hereof and comprising final terms solely for the purposes of the Luxembourg Law on prospectuses for
securities insofar as it applies to exempt issuers under Article 1(2){b) of the Prospectus Directive) in
connection with the offering of the Notes. If any such information or representation is nevertheless given or
made by any dealer, broker, seller or other person, it must not be relied upon as having been authorised by
the Bank or by any of the Dealers (as defined in “‘Subscription and Sale” below).

The issue of this Information Memorandum or any Pricing Supplement and the issue, subscription,
offering and sale of the Notes are not a waiver by the Bank or by any of its members, Governors, Directors,
Alrernates, officers or employees of any of the rights, immunities, privileges or exemptions conferred upon
any of them by the Agreement Establishing the African Development Bank (as amended} (the
“Agreement”), or by any statute, law or regulation of any member of the Bank or any political
subdivision of any member, all of which are hereby expressly reserved. The Bank is, however, amenable to
suit in respect of its obligations under the Notes in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Notes.

THE NOTES ARE NOT AN OBLIGATION OF ANY GOVERNMENT.

The Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered, nor. may this Information Memorandum, any Pricing
Supplement or any other offering material be distributed, in any country or jurisdiction except in
circumstances that will result in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. No action has been or
will be taken by the Bank or the Dealers that would permit a public offering of the Notes or the circulation
or distribution of this Information Memorandum, in proof or final form, any Pricing Supplement, or any
offering material in relation to the Bank or the Notes in any country or jurisdiction where action for that
purpose is required.

The Notes are not required to be registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended
{the “‘Securities Act”). Accordingly, no registration siatement has been filed with the US Securities and
Exchange Commission (the "Commission”). THE NOTES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR
DISAPPROVED BY THE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION NOR HAS
THE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION PASSED UPON THE
ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM. ANY
REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENCE IN THE UNITED

STATES.

Notes in bearer form ("'Bearer Notes”) are subject to US tax law requirements. Subject to certain
exceptions, Bearer Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to, or for the
account or benefit of, United States persons.

Noies denominated in Australian dollars and issued in Australia (' Australian Domestic Notes”) wilf
be offered only in the wholesale capital markets and on the basis that no disclosure to investors is required
under Part 6D.2 of the Corporations Act 2001 of the Commonwealth of Australia. The Bank is not
authorised under the Banking Act 1959 of the Commonwealth of Australia to carry on banking business
nor is the Bank subject 1o prudential supervision by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority. The
obligations of the Bank are not guaranteed by the Commonwealth of Australia. Amendments to the Terms
and Conditions set out herein which are applicable to Australian Domestic Notes will be set out in the

relevant Pricing Supplement.

This Information Memorandun (or any Pricing Supplement issued in connection with it) does not
constitute an offer of, or an invitation by or on behalf of the Bank or any of the Dealers to subscribe for or
purchase, any of the Notes.
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In this Information Memorandum, unless otherwise specified, references to “EUR", “euro’ and “'€"
are to the lawful currency of the Member States of the European Union that have adopted the single
currency introduced at the start of the third stage of the European Economic and Monetary Union pursuant
to the Treaty establishing the European Community, as amended, references to “U.8.3 and “U.S. dollars”
or “dollars” are to United States dollars and references to “A$’’ and “Australian dollars’ are to the lawful
currency of the Commonwealth of Australia.

In connection with the issue of any Tranche of Notes under the Facility, the Dealer or Dealers (if any)
named as the Stabilising Manager(s) in the applicable Pricing Supplement (or any person(s) acting on
behalf of any Stabilising Manager(s)) may over-allot Notes or effect transactions with a view to supporting
the price of the Notes at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail. However, there is no
assurance that the Stabilising Manager(s) (or any agent of the Stabilising Manager(s)) will undertake
stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may begin at any time after the adequate public disclosure of
the Pricing Supplement for the offer of the relevant Tranche of Notes and, if begun, may be ended at any
time, but it must end no later than the earlier of 30 days after the issue date of the relevant Tranche of Notes
and 60 days after the date of the allotment of the relevant Tranche of Notes. Any stabilisation action or
over-allotment must be conducted by the relevant Stabilising Manager(s) (or any agent of such Stabilising
Manager(s)) in accordance with all applicable laws and rules.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following documents shall be deemed to be incorporated by reference in, and to form part of,
this Information Memorandum:

(i) the most recent publicly available information statement (the “Information Statement™) of the
Bank, beginning with the information statement dated 7 August 2006;

(ii) the audited financial statements and reports of the independent auditors of the Bank for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004 and for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
contained, respectively, in the 2005 and 2006 annual reports of the Bank;

(iif) any amendment or supplement to the Information _Statement or to this Information
Memorandum; and

(iv) with respect to any Notes issued by the Bank, the relevant Pricing Supplement,

except that any statement contained in this Information Memorandum and any of the documents
incorporated by reference in, and forming part of, this Information Memorandum shall be deemed to be
modified or superseded for the purpose of this Information Memorandum to the extent that a statement
contained in a document subsequently incorporated by reference in this Information Memorandum
modifies or supersedes that statement.
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The table below sets out the relevant page references for, infer alia, the notes to and the reports of
the independent auditors in the financial statements for 2005 and 2006 as set out in the respective annual

reports:

2005 Financial Statements

1
2
3
4,
5
6

Balance Sheet

Statement of Income and EXPENSES .......cccrvrevrnniecisissrersirsiossemeseresesssenns

Statement of Recognized Income and Expense ...

Statement OF Cash FloWs ..ottt e s eeeeeneres

Report of the

Independent Auditors ...

2006 Financial Statements

A S o

Balance Sheet

Statement of Income and EXPENSES ..........ccoviiiicmicrnisvse e et sanes

Statement of Recognized Income and Expense.........cooccomninunnerirerneerennns

Statement Of Cash FIOWS........oviceuiccivernnecseceee et se e i rssrassssast e e s renssssn

Notes to the Financial Statements...........ocoooovio oo

Page reference
p.142-143

p.144

p-145

p-146

p.147-201

p-202

Page reference
p.110-111
p-112
p.113
p.114
p.115-167
p-168

The Bank will, at the specified offices of the Paying Agents, provide, free of charge, upon the oral or
written request therefor, a copy of this Information Memorandum (or any document incorporated by
reference in this Information Memorandum). Written or oral requests for such documents should be
directed to the specified office of any Paying Agent or the specified office of the Listing Agent in
Luxembourg,.

In addition, the Bank is subject to certain informational requirements of Regulation AFDB
promulgated by the Secunties and Exchange Commission under Section 9(A) of the African
Development Bank Act of the United States, and in accordance therewith files its annual report,
regular quarterly financial statements and other information with the Commission. Such reports, financial
statements and other information can be inspected at the public reference room of the Commission at
100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, and copies of such material can be obtained
from the Public Reference Section of the Commission at the above address at prescribed rates.
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SUMMARY OF THE FACILITY

The following is a brief summary only and should be read, in relation to any series of Notes, in
conjunction with the relevant Pricing Supplement and. to the extent applicable, the Terms and
Conditions of the Notes set out on pages 10 to 23 hereof.

Issuer African Development Bank.
Arranger Citigroup Global Markets Limited.
Dealers Barclays Bank PLC, BNP Paribas, Citigroup Global Markets

Limited, Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited, Daiwa
Securities SMBC  Europe  Limited, Dresdner  Bank
Aktiengeselischaft, Goldman Sachs International, HSBC Bank pic,
JP. Morgan Securities [.td., Lehman Brothers International
{Europe), Merrill Lynch International, Mitsubishi UUFJ Securities
International plc, Mizuho International plc, Morgan Stanley & Co.
International ple, Nomura International ple, Société Générale,
Standard Bank Plc, Standard Chartered Bank and The Toronto-
Dominion Bank and any other dealer appointed from time to time by
the Bank and specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Issuing and Paying Agent Citibank, N.A. and/or such other agent(s) as may be specified in the
relevant Pricing Supplement.

Registrar Citibank, N.A. and/or such other registrar as may be specified in the
relevant Pricing Supplement,

Transfer Agent Dexia Banque Internationale 3 Luxembourg, société anonyme
and/or such other agent(s) as may be specified in the relevant
Pricing Supplement.

Listing Agent Dexia Banque Internationale 3 Luxembourg, société anonyme
and/or such other agent(s) as may be specified in the relevant
Pricing Supplement.

Facility Amount Notes may be issued and outstanding in an unlimited aggregate
principal amount.

Availability The Facility will be continuously available and will be uncommitted.

Form of Notes The Notes may be issued in bearer form or in registered form. Notes

in registered form may not be exchanged for Notes in bearer form.
Notes issued in bearer form will initially be represented by
temporary global notes, which will be deposited with a common
depositary for Euroclear Bank S.A/N.V., (“Euroclear””) and/or
Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, Luxembourg (“Clearstream,
Luxembourg”) andfor any other relevant clearing system. Each
permanent global note will also be exchangeable in whole but not in
part for Notes in definitive form in accordance with its terms.

Bearer Notes in definitive form will, if interest bearing, either have
interest coupons attached or have a grid for recording the payment of
interest endorsed thereon.

Clearing Systems Notes shall be accepted for clearing through one or more clearing
systems as specified in the applicable Pricing Supplement. These
systems shall include, in the United States, the system operated by
The Depository Trust Company and, outside the United States, the
systems operated by Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg and, in
Australia, the system operated by Austraclear Limited.

Status of Notes Notes may be issued as senior notes (‘‘Senior Notes”) or
subordinated notes (“‘Subordinated Notes™) and will be direct,
unsecured and general obligations of the Bank.
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Interest Rates

Variable Coupon Amount Notes

Zero Coupon Notes

Vartable Redemption Amount
Notes

Other Notes

Negative Pledge

Events of Default

Currencies

Issuance in Series

The Senior Notes will rank pari passu without any preference one
above the other by reason of priority of date of issue, currency of
payment or otherwise with all other unsecured obligations of the
Bank, present and future, except to the extent that any such
obligations are by their terms expressed to be subordinated in right of
payment. The Subordinated Notes, in the event a call is made by the
Bank on its callable capital in accordance with the Agreement, will
be subordinated as provided in the Subordinated Notes to the Senior
Notes of the Bank; unless and until a call is made by the Bank, the
Subordinated Notes will rank pari passu without any preference one
above the other by reason of priority of date of issue, currency of
payment or otherwise with Senior Notes of the Bank,

Notes may be interest bearing or non-interest bearing. Interest (if
any) may be at a fixed or floating rate and may vary during the
lifetime of the relevant Series.

The Pricing Supplement issued in respect of each issue of Variable
Coupon Amount Notes will specify the basis for calculating the
amounts of interest payable, which may be by reference to a variety
of financial instruments, a currency exchange rate or any other index
or formula or as otherwise provided in the relevant Pricing
Supplement.

Zero Coupon Notes may be issued at a discount to par and will not
bear interest.

The Pricing Supplement issued in respect of each issue of Variable
Redemption Amount Notes will specify the basis for calculating the
redemption amounts payable, which may be by reference to a variety
of financial instruments, a currency exchange rate or any other index
or formula or as otherwise provided in the relevant Pricing
Supplement.

Terms applicable to High Interest Notes, Low Interest Notes, Step-
up Naotes, Step-Down Notes, Dual Currency Notes, Reverse Dual
Currency Notes, Optional Dual Currency Notes, Index-Linked Notes
and any other type of Notes which the Bank and any Dealer or
Dealers may agree to issue under the Facility, subject to compliance
with all applicable relevant laws, regulations and directives, will be
set out in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

The Notes have the benefit of a negative pledge in respect of bonds,
notes or other evidences of indebtedness of a maturity of more than
one year issued, assumed or guaranteed by the Bank, as more fully
described under “Terms and Conditions of the Notes™.

The events of default under the Notes are as specified below under
*Terms and Conditions of the Notes”.

Notes may be denominated in such currency or currency units as may
be agreed among the Bank, the relevant Dealer(s) and the Issuing
and Paying Agent (including, without limitation, the Euro, the
Japanese Yen, the Pound Sterling, the United States Dollar, the
Canadian Dollar, the Singapore Dollar, the Swiss Franc and the
Australian Dollar}, subject to compliance with all applicable legal or
regulatory requirements.

Notes wiil be issued in a series (each a ““Series™). The Notes of each
Series will all be subject to identical terms, whether as to currency.
interest or maturity or otherwise, or terms which are identical except
that the issue date, the amount of the first payment of interest andfor
the denomination thereof may be different. Each Series may
comprise one or more tranches (“Tranches™ and each, a
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Issue Price

Maturity of Notes

Denominations

Early Redemption

Redempticn

Taxation

Governing Law

Listing and Trading

Terms and Conditions

Enforcement of Notes in (Global
Form

Pricing Supplements

*Tranche™) issued on different issue dates. A Series may only be
comprised of Notes in bearer form or Notes in registered form.

Notes may be issued at par or at a discount or premium to par.

Notes may be issued with maturities of one day or longer as may be
agreed between the Bank and the relevant Dealer and as indicated in
the applicable Pricing Supplement, subject to such minimum or
maximum maturities as may be allowed or required from time to
time by the relevant central bank (or equivalent body) or any laws or
regulations applicable to the Bank or the relevant specified currency.

Notes will be issued in such denominations as may be agreed
between the Bank and the relevant Dealer and as specified in the
relevant Pricing Supplement, subject to compliance with ali
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, and in accordance
with usual market practice.

Early redemption will be permitted only to the extent specified in the
rejevant Pricing Supplement and then only subject to any applicable
legal or regulatory limitations.

Notes may be redecmable at par or at such other redemption amount
as may be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Each Series of Notes and the interest thereon will not be exempt
from taxation generally but, under the Agreement, are not, in certain
circumstances, subject to any tax by a member country, as more fully
described in *“Taxation™ below.

The Notes and all related contractual documentation will be
governed by, and construed in accordance with, English law, except
as otherwise specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Each Series of Notes may be listed and traded on the regulated
market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange andfor admitted to
listing, trading and/or quotation by any other listing authority, stock
exchange, regulatory market and/or quotation system as may be
agreed between the Bank and the relevant Dealer or they may be
unlisted, as specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

The terms and conditions applicable to each Series (the “Terms and
Conditions™) will be agreed between the Bank and the relevant
Dealer or other purchaser at or prior to the time of issuance of such
Series, and will be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement. The
Terms and Conditions applicable to each Series will therefore be
those set out on pages 10 to 23 hereof as supplemented, modified or
replaced by the relevant Pricing Supplement.

In the case of Notes in global form, individual investors’ rights will be
governed by a Deed of Covenant dated 9 July 2003 and available for
inspection at the specified office of the Issuing and Paying Agent and
by their amrangement with Euroclear andfor Clearstream,
Luxembourg,

The commercial terms of each trade will be set forth in Pricing
Supplemeats which, where applicable, will be annexed to the global
notes and (i) define the legal terms of the issue and (i) act as a
mechanism for Jisting the Notes. For the purpose of the Luxembourg
Law on prospectuses for securities insofar as it applies to exempt
issuers under Article 1{2){(b} of the Prospectus Directive, ail
references in this document to “Pricing Supplement” should be
read and construed as references to “Final Terms".
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Placement Commission

Selling Restrictions

Placement of Notes by a Dealer to all non-Dealer/purchasers under
the Facility will be subject to a placement commission payable to the
placing Dealer.

The Dealers have undertaken to comply with appropriate UK, US,
Australian and all other applicable selling restrictions, as more fuily
described in “Subscription and Sale” below. Further restrictions may
be required in connection with any particular Tranche of Notes and
will be specified in the documentation reltating to such Tranche.
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES

The following are the Terms and Conditions of the Notes and other debt obligations issued under the
Facility which (subject to completion and amendment) will be applicable to each Series of Notes provided
that the relevant Pricing Supplement in relation to any Series of Notes may specify other Terms and
Conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with these Terms and
Conditions, replace the following Terms and Conrditions for the purposes of such Series of Notes.

1. General

Unless otherwise specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, the notes and other debt obligations
(the “Notes") issued under the facility (the “Facility”’} are issued with the benefit of an amended and
restated issuing and paying agency agreement dated 12 August 2005 (executed on 29 September 2005 but
effective from 12 August 2005) (the "Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement” which expression shall
include any further amendment or supplements thereto or restatements thereof) and made between the
African Development Bank (the “Bank’) and Citibank, N.A. London as issuing and paying agent {the
“Issuing and Paying Agent”, which expression shall include any substitute Issuing and Paying Agent
successor to Citibank, N.A. in its capacity as such), Citibank, N.A. London as principal registrar (the
“Principal Registrar”, which expression shall include any substitute Principal Registrar successor to
Citibank, N.A. in its capacity as such), The Bank of New York, Brussels, as first alternative registrar (the
“First Alternative Registrar”, which expression shall include any substitute First Alternative’ Registrar
successor to Bank of New York, Brussels, in its capacity as such), Citibank, N A, New York, as second
alternative registrar (the “Second Alternative Registrar”, which expression shall include any substitute
Second Alternative Registrar successor to Citibank, N.A., New York in its capacity as such), Dexia
Banque Internationale 3 Luxembourg, société anonyme, as transfer agent (the *Transfer Agent”, which
expression shall include any substitute Transfer Agent successor to Dexia Banque Internationale 2
Luxembourg, société anonyme, in its capacity as such) and certain other financial institutions named
therein in their capacities as paying agents {the “Paying Agents” which expression shall include the
Issuing and Paying Agent and any substitute or additional paying agents appointed in accordance with
the Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement). References herein to the “Registrar” are to the Principal
Registrar, the First Alternative Registrar, or as the case may be, the Second Alternative Registrar as
specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement relating to Registered Notes. Copies of the Issuing and
Paying Agency Agreement and the form of the Notes will be available for inspection at the specified
office of each of the Paying Agents. The holders of the Notes (the “Noteholders™) and the holders of the
coupons (the *“Couponholders” and the “Coupons”, respectively), appertaining to interest bearing Notes
and, where applicable in the case of such Notes, talons (the “Talons”) for further Coupons are deemed to
have notice of all the provisions of the Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement which will be binding upon
them.

2,  Form and Denomination

The Notes will be issued in bearer form or in registered form and issued in series {(each a “Series™),
and each Series will be the subject of a pricing supplement {each a “Pricing Supplement”) prepared by or
on behalf of the Bank, the terms set forth in which may supplement or vary any of these Conditions. A
copy of each Pricing Supplement will be available at the specified office of each of the Paying Agents, or
if the Notes form part of a Series of Registered Notes, the Transfer Agent or the Registrar. A copy of the
Pricing Supplement will be lodged with the Luxembourg Stock Exchange in the case of each Series of
Notes which is to be listed thereon.

Bearer Notes

Notes issued in bearer form (*‘Bearer Notes'™) will be represented upon issue by a temporary global
note (a “Temporary Global Note”) in substantially the form (subject to amendment and completion)
scheduled to the Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement. On or after the date (the “Exchange Date”)
which is forty days after the original issue date of the Notes of the relevant Series and provided
certification as to the non-US beneficial ownership thereof as required by US Treasury regulations {in
the form sei out in the Temporary Global Note) has been received by Euroclear Bank S.A/NYV.
{“Euroclear”™) andfor Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, Luxembourg (“Clearstream,
Luxembourg'), interests in the Temporary Global Note may be exchanged for:
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(1) interests in a permanent global note (a ' Permanent Global Note") representing the Notes in
that Series and in substantiaily the form (subject to amendment and completion) scheduled to
the Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement; or

(if) if so specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, definitive notes (“Definitive Notes™) in
substantially the form (subject to amendment and completion) scheduled to the Issuing and
Paying Agency Agreement,

If any date on which a payment of interest is due on the Notes of a Series occurs whilst any of the
Notes of that Series are represented by the Temporary Global Note, the related interest payment will be
made on the Temporary Global Note only to the extent that certification as to the non-US beneficial
ownership thereof as required by US Treasury regulations (in the form set out in the Temporary Global
Note) has been received by Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other relevant clearing
system. Payments of principal or interest (if any) on 2 Permanent Global Note will be made through
Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg, or any other relevant clearing systems without any requirement for
certification.

Interests in a Permanent Global Note will be exchangeable in whole but not in part only and at the
request of the holders of interests in such Permanent Global Note, for Definitive Notes (a) on the expiry
of such period of notice as may be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement provided such period is no
more than 60 days, or (b) at any time, if so specified in the relevant Pricing Suppiement, or (c) if the
relevant Pricing Supplement specifies ““in the limited circumstances described in the Permanent Global
Note"”, then if either of the following events occurs:

(i) Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg or any other relevant clearing system is closed for
business for a continuous period of 14 days (other than by reason of legal holidays) or
announces an intention permanently to cease business or has in fact permanently ceased
business and no successor in business to such clearinp system is available which will provide
clearing services on a broadly equivalent basis; or

(it} any of the circumstances described in Condition B has occurred and is continuing.

In order to request such exchange the holder must deposit the relevant Permanent Global Note
with the Issuing and Paying Agent with the form of exchange notice endorsed thereon duly completed. if
the Definitive Notes have not been delivered by 6.00 p.m. (London time) on the thirtieth day after the
day on which the hoider has duly requested exchange of the Permanent Global Note for Definitive Notes,
such Permanent Global Note will become void in accordance with its terms but without prejudice to the
rights of the account holders with Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg, or any other relevant ciearing
system in relation thereto under a deed of covenant (the “Deed of Covenant™) dated 9 July 2003 and
executed and delivered by the Bank in relation to the Notes.

Title to the Bearer Notes will pass by delivery and, except as ordered by a court of competent
jurisdiction or as required by law, the Bank and the Paying Agents shall be entitled to treat the bearer of
any Notes as the absolute owner thereof and shall not be required to obtain any proof thereof or as to the
identity of the bearer. References herein to the “Holders” of Bearer Notes, Coupons or Talons signify
the bearers of such Bearer Notes, such Coupons or such Talons.

The Holder of any Bearer Note, Coupon or Talon will (except as otherwise required by applicable
law or regulatory requirement) be treated as its absolute owner for all purposes (whether or not it is
overdue and regardless of any notice of ownership, trust or any interest thereof or therein, any writing
thereon, or any theft or loss thereof) and no person shall be liable for so treating such Holder.

Registered Notes

Unless otherwise specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, Notes issued in registered form
{(**Registered Notes™) will be in substantially the form (subject to amendment and completion) scheduled
in the Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement. Registered Notes will not be exchangeable for Bearer
Notes.

Registered Notes denominated in United States dollars will, if so specified in the relevant Pricing
Supplement, be the subject of an application by the Bank to The Depository Trust Company (“DTC™)
for the acceptance of such Registered Notes inlo DTC's book-entry settlement system. If such application
is accepted. one or more Registered Notes (each a “DTC Note”) in denominations equivalent in
aggregate to the aggregate principal amount of relevant Registered Notes which are to be held in such
system will be issued to DTC and registered in the name of Cede Co., or such other person as may be
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nominated by DTC for the purpose, as nominee for DTC provided that no DTC Note may have a
denomination of more than US$500,000,000 and that, subject to such restriction, DTC Notes will always
be issued in the largest possible denomination. Thereafter, such registered nominee will be the holder of
record and entitled to rights in respect of each DTC Noie,

Accordingly, each person having a beneficial interest in a DTC Note must rely on the procedures of
the institutions having accounts with DTC to exercise any rights of such person. So long as Registered
Notes are traded through DTC’s book-entry settlement system, ownership of beneficial interest in the
relevant DTC Note will (unless otherwise required by applicable law or regulatory requirement) be
shown on, and transfers of such beneficial interest may be effected only through, records maintained by
(a) DTC or its registered nominee (as to Participant-interests) or (b) institutions having accounts with
DTC.

Title to Registered Notes passes by registration in the register which is kept by the Registrar,
References herein to the “Holders” of Registered Notes signify the persons in whose names such Notes
are so registered. _

A Registered Note may, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in the Issuing and
Paying Agency Agreement, be transferred in whole or in part only (provided that such part is, or is an
integral multiple of, the minimum denomination specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement) upon the
surrender of the Registered Note to be transferred, together with the form of transfer endorsed on it duly
completed and executed, at the specified office of the Registrar or the Transfer Agent. A new Registered
Note will be issued in favour of the transferee and, in the case of a transfer of part only of a Registered
Note, a new Registered Note in respect of the balance not transferred will be issued in favour of the
transferor.

No Noteholder may require the transfer of a Registered Note to be registered (i) during the period
of 15 days ending on the due date for redemption of, or payment of any Instalment Amount in respect of,
that Note, (ii) during the period of 15 days before any date on which Notes may be called for redemption
by the Bank at its option pursuant to Condition 5, (iii) after any such Note has been called for redemption
or (iv) during the period of seven days ending on (and including) any Record Date.

Each new Registered Note to be issued upon the transfer of Registered Notes will, upon the
effective receipt of such form of transfer by the Registrar or the Transfer Agent at its specified office, be
available for delivery at the specified office of the Registrar or the Transfer Agent. For these purposes, a
form of transfer received by the Registrar or the Transfer Agent during the period of fifteen London
Banking Days or, as the case may be, Relevant Banking Days ending on the due date for any payment on
the relevant Registered Notes shall be deemed not to be effectively received by the Registrar or the
Transfer Agent until the day following the due date for such payment. For the purposes of these terms
and conditions (‘‘Terms and Conditions™), “London Banking Day" means a day on which commercial
banks are open for business {including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in
London and “Relevant Banking Day” means a day on which commercial banks are open for business
{(including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the places where the specified
offices of the Registrar and the Transfer Agent are located.

The issue of new Registered Notes on transfer will be effected without charge by or on behalf of the
Bank or the Registrar, but upon payment by the applicant of {or the giving by the applicant of such
indemnity as the Registrar may require in respect of) any applicable tax or other governmeat charges
imposed in relation thereto.

3. Status, Negative Pledge and Undertaking

Notes may be issued as senior notes {the “Senior Notes') or subordinated notes (the “*Subordinated
Notes™). The Notes are not the obligations of any government. The obiigations deriving from the Notes
will be direct, unsecured and general obligations of the Bank. The Senior Notes and Coupons will rank
pari passu and without any preference one above the other by reason of priority of date of issue, currency
of payment or otherwise with all other unsecured obligations of the Bank, present and future, except to
the extent that any such ather obligations are by their terms expressed to be subordinated in right of
payment.

In the event that a call is made by the Bank on its callable capital in accordance with the
Agreement, the rights of holders of Subordinated Notes 10 receive any payment shall be subordinated to
the repayment in full of all seeured and unsecured creditors of the Bank which are not expressly so
subordinated. Unless and until a call is made by the Bank, the Subordinated Notes will rank pari passu
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without any preference one above the other by reason of priority of date of issue, currency. payment or
otherwise with Senior Notes of the Bank.

As long as any of the Notes shall remain outstanding and unpaid but only up to the time all amounts
of principal and, where applicable, interest due in respect of the notes have been paid to the Issuing and
Paying Agent, the Bank will not cause or permit to be created on any of its present or future property or
assets any mortgage, pledge or other lien or charge as security for any bonds, notes or other evidences of
indebtedness of a maturity of more than one year heretofore or hereafter issued, assumed or guaranteed
by the Bank for money borrowed (other than purchase money mortgages, pledges or other liens or
charges on property purchased by the Bank as security for all or part of the purchase price thereof),
unless the Notes shall be secured by such mortgage, pledge or other lien or charge so as to rank pari passu
in point of security and rateably with such other bonds, notes or other evidences of indebtedness.

The Bank undertakes that, in the event of a call on the callable capital of the Bank, 1t will instruct its
members to make payments in satisfaction of such call into an account established with the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York (or its successor duly designated for the purpose) on the terms that the
proceeds of any such call shall be applied in payment of or provision for full settlement of, outstanding
obligations of the Bank incurred by it in the exercise of its powers to borrow and give guarantees (other
than such obligations which by their terms are expressed 10 be subordinated in right of payment) before
any other payment shall be made with such proceeds. The Bank shall be entitled, without the consent of
the Noteholders, to agree to any amendments to the agreement between the Bank and the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York (or its successor duly designated for the purpose) relating to the
establishment of the said account provided that such amendments are not inconsistent with the foregoing
undertaking. If such a call is made, the obligation of the Bank in respect of Subordinated Notes shall
become subordinated to the obligation of the Bank in respect of Senior Notes in right of payment and,
accordingly, the holders of Subordinated Notes will receive no payments with respect to such
Subordinated Notes and the Bank may not acquire any Subordinated Notes until all holders of Senior
Notes outstanding at the date of such call are paid in full or adequately provided for in the opinion of the
Board of Directors of the Bank. In such event, the Bank shall within a reasonable time apply the proceeds
of any such call, any liquid assets of the Bank and any of its investments which are capable of realisation
within a reasonable time to pay in full or adequatety provide for in the opinion of the Board of Directors
of the Bank all of the Senior Notes outstanding at the date of such call, provided that the Bank shail not
be obliged (by virtue of these provisions) to make any further call on its members or to realise or demand
early repayment of loans or to rescind or cancel guarantees made by it to its borrowers or given to secure
indebtedness. Upon any distribution to creditors of the Bank following a call on its callable capital, the
holders of Senior Notes will be entitled to receive payment in full before the holders of Subordinated
Notes will be entitled to receive any payment.

4. Interest

Each Fized Rate Note will bear interest on its outstanding nominal amount from the Interest
Commencement Date at the rate per annum (expressed as a percentage) equal to the Rate of Interest,
such interest being payable in arrear on each Interest Payment Daie.

1f a Fixed Coupon Amount or a Broken Amount is specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, the
amount of interest payable on each Interest Payment Date will amount to the Fixed Coupon Amount or,
if applicable, the Broken Amount so specified and in the case of the Broken Amouat will be payable on
the particular Interest Payment Date(s) specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Each Floating Rate Note and Index Linked Interest Note will bear interest on its outstanding
nominal amount from the Interest Commencement Date at the rate per annum (expressed as a
percentage) equal to the Rate of Interest, such interest being payable in arrear on each Interest Payment
Date. Such Interest Payment Date(s) is/are either shown in the relevant Pricing Supplement as Specified
Interest Payment Dates or, if no Specified Interest Payment Date(s) is/are shown in the relevant Pricing
Supplement, Interest Payment Date shall mean each date which falls the number of months or other
period shown in the relevant Pricing Supplement as the Interest Period after the preceding Interest
Payment Date or, in the case of the first Interest Payment Date, after the Interest Commencement Date,

If any date referred to in these Conditions that is specified to be subject to adjustment in accordance
with a Business Day Convention would otherwise fall on a day that is not a Business Day. then, if the
Business Day Convention specified is (A) the Floating Rate Business Day Convention, such date shall be
postponed to the next day that is a Business Day unless it would thereby fall into the next calendar
month, in which event (x} such date shall be brought forward to the immediately preceding Business Day
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and (y) each subsequent such date shall be the last Business Day of the month in which such date would
have fallen had it not been subject to adjustment, (B) the Following Business Day Convention, such date
shall be postponed to the next day that is a Business Day, (C) the Modified Following Business Day
Couvention, such date shall be postponed to the next day that is a Business Day unless it would thereby
fall into the next calendar month, in which event such date shall be brought forward to the immediately
preceding Business Day or (D) the Preceding Business Day Convention, such date shall be brought
forward to the immediately preceding Business Day.

The Rate of Interest in respect of Floating Rate Notes for each Interest Accrual Period shall be
determined in the manner specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement and the provisions below relating
to either ISDA Determination or Screen Rate Determination shall apply, depending upon which is
specified in the relevant Pricing Suppiement.

ISDA Determination for Floating Rate Notes: Where ISDA Determination is specified in the
relevant Pricing Supplement as the manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the Rate of
Interest for each Interest Accrual Period shall be determined by the Calculation Agent as a rate equal to
the relevant ISDA Rate plus or minus (as indicated in the relevant Pricing Supplement) the Margin (if
any). For the purposes of this sub-paragraph, “ISDA Rate” for an Interest Accrual Period means a rate
equal to the Floating Rate that would be determined by the Calculation Agent under a Swap Transaction
under the terms of an agreement incorporating the ISDA Definitions and under which:

{x) the Floating Rate Option is as specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement
(v) the Designated Maturity is a period specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement and

(z) the relevant Reset Date is the first day of that Interest Accruai Period unless otherwise
specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

For the purposes of this sub-paragraph, “Floating Rate”, “Calculation Agent”, “Floating Rate
Option”, “Designated Maturity”, “Reset Date” and “Swap Transaction’ have the meanings given to

v

those terms in the ISDA Definitions.

Screen Rate Determination for Floating Rate Notes: Where Screen Rale Determination is specified
in the relevant Pricing Supplement as the manner in which the Rate of Interest is to be determined, the
Rate of Interest for each Interest Accrual Period shall be determined by the Calculation Agent at or
about the Relevant Time on the Interest Determination Date in respect of such Interest Accrual Period
in accordance with the following:

{x) if the Primary Source for Floating Rate is a Page, subject as provided below, the Rate of
Interest shall be:

(I) the Relevant Rate (where such Relevant Rate on such Page is a composite quotation or
is customarily supplied by one entity); or

(IT) the arithmetic mean of the Relevant Rates of the persons whose Relevant Rates appear
on that Page,

in each case appearing on such Page at the Relevant Time on the Interest Determination
Date;

{y) if the Primary Source for the Floating Rate is Reference Banks or if sub-paragraph (x)(I)
applies and no Relevant Rate appears on the Page at the Relevant Time on the Interest
Determination Date or if sub-paragraph (x)(II) applies and fewer than two Relevant Rates
appear on the Page at the Relevant Time on the Interest Determination Date, subject as
provided below, the Rate of Interest shall be the arithmetic mean of the Relevant Rates that
each of the Reference Banks is quoting to leading banks in the Relevant Financial Centre at
the Relevant Time on the Interest Determination Date, as determined by the Calculation

Agent; and

{z) if paragraph (y} above applies and the Calculation Agent determines that fewer than two
Reference Banks are so quoting Relevant Rates, subject as provided below, the Rate of
Interest shall be the arithmetic mean of the rates per annum (expressed as a percentage) that
the Calculation Agent determines to be the rates (being the nearest equivalent to the
Benchmark) in respect of a Representative Amount of the Specified Currency that at least two
out of five leading banks selected by the Calculation Agent in the principal financial centre of
the country of the Specified Currency or, if the Specified Currency is euro, in the Euro-zone as
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selected by the Calculation Agent (the *'‘Principal Financial Centre™) are quoting at or about
the Relevant Time on the date on which such banks would customarily quote such rates for a
period commencing on the Effective Date for a period equivalent to the Specified Duration (¥)
to leading banks carrying on business in Europe, or {if the Calculation Agent determines that
fewer than two of such banks are so quoting to leading banks in Europe) (II) to leading banks
carrying on business in the Principal Financial Centre; except that, if fewer than two of such
banks are so quoting to leading banks in the Principal Financial Centre, the Rate of Interest
shall be the Rate of Interest determined on the previous Interest Determination Date (after
readjustment for any difference between any Margin, Rate Multiplier or Maximum or
Minimum Rate of Interest applicable to the preceding Interest Accrual Period and to the
relevant Interest Accrual Period).

The Rate of Interest in respect of Index Linked Interest Notes for each Interest Accrual Period
shall be determined in the manner specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement and interest will acerue by
reference to an Index or Formula as specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Where a Note the Interest Basis of which is specified to be Zero Coupon is repayable prior to the
Maturity Date and is not paid when due, the amount due and payable prior to the Maturity Date shall be
the Early Redemption Amount of such Note. As from the Maturity Date, the Rate of Interest for any
overdue principal of such a Note shall be a rate per annum (expressed as a percentage) equal to the
Amortisation Yield as provided in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

In the case of Dual Currency Notes, if the rate or amount of interest falls to be determined by
reference to a Rate of Exchange or a method of calculating Rate of Exchange, the rate or amount of
interest payable shall be determined io the manner specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

In the case of Partly Paid Notes (other than Partly Paid Notes which are Zero Coupon Notes),
interest will accrue as aforesaid on the paid-up nominal amount of such Notes and otherwise as specified
in the relevant Pricing Supplement.

Interest shall cease to accrue on each Note on the due date for redemption unless, upon due
presentation, payment is improperly withheld or refused, in which event interest shall continue to accrue
(as well after as before judgment) at the Rate of Interest in the manner provided in this Condition 4 to the
Relevant Date. As used in these Conditions, “Relevant Date” in respect of any Note, Receipt or Coupon
means the date on which payment in respect of it first becomes due or (if any amount of the money
payable is improperly withheld or refused) the date on which payment in full of the amount outstanding is
made or (if earlier) the date seven days after that on which notice is duly given to the Noteholders that,
upon further presentation of the Note (or relative Certificate), Receipt or Coupon being made in
accordance with the Conditions, such payment will be made, provided that payment is in fact made upon
such presentation. References in these Conditions to (i} “principal”” shall be deemed to include any
premiuim payable in respect of the Notes, all Instalment Amounts, Final Redemption Amounts, Early
Redemption Amounts, Optional Redemption Amounts, Amortised Face Amounts and all other amounts
in the nature of principal payable pursuant to Condition 6 or any amendment or supplement to it, (ii)
“interest”” shall be deemed to include all Interest Amounts and afl other amounts payable pursuant to
this Condition 4 or any amendment or supplement to it and (iii) “principal’’ and/or “interest™ shall be
deemed to include any additional amounts that may be payable under the Conditions.

If any Margin or Rate Multiplier is specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement {either (x)
generally, or (y) in relation to one or more Interest Accrual Periods), an adjustment shall be made to all
Rates of Interest, in the case of (x), or the Rates of Interest for the specified Interest Accrual Periods, in
the case of {y), calculated in accordance with (b) above by adding (if a positive number) or subtracting
the absolute value (if a negative number) of such Margin or multiplying by such Rate Multiplier, subject
always to the next paragraph.

If any Maximum or Minimum Rate of laterest, Instalment Amount or Redemption Amount is
specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, then any Rate of Interest, Instalment Amount or
Redemption Amount shall be subject to such maximum or minimum, as the case may be.

For the purposes of any calculations required pursuant to these Conditions (unless otherwise
specified), (x) ail percentages resulting from such calculations shall be rounded, if necessary, to the
nearest one hundred-thousandth of a percentage point (with halves being rounded up), (y) all figures shail
be rounded to seven significant figures {with halves being rounded up) and (z) all currency amounts that
faill due and payable shall be rounded to the nearest unit of such currency (with halves being rounded up),
save in the case of yen, which shall be rounded down to the nearest yen. For these purposes “unit™” means
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the lowest amount of such currency that is available as fegal tender in the country or countries of such
currency.

The amount of interest payable in respect of any Note for any period shall be calculated by
multiplying the product of the Rate of Interest and the outstanding nominal amount of such Note by the
Day Count Fraction, unless an Interest Amount {or a formula for its calculation) is specified in respect of
such period, in which case the amount of interest payable in respect of such Note for such period shall
equal such Interest Amount (or be calculated in accordance with such formula). Where any Interest
Period comprises two or more Interest Accrual Periods, the amount of interest payable in respect of such
Interest Period shall be the sum of the amounts of interest payable in respect of each of those Interest
Accrual Periods.

As soon as practicable after the Relevant Time on such date as the Calculation Agent may be
required to calculate any rate or amount, obtain any quotation or make any determination or calculation,
it shall determine such rate and calculate the Interest Amounts in respect of each Specified
Denomination of the Notes for the relevant Interest Accrual Period, calculate the Final Redemption
Amount, Early Redemption Amount, Optional Redemption Amount or Instalment Amount, obtain such
quotation or make such determination or calculation, as the case may be, and cause the Rate of Interest
and the Interest Amounts for each Interest Period and the relevant Interest Payment Date and, if
required 10 be caleulated, the Final Redemption Amount, Early Redempiion Amount, Optional
Redemption Amount or any Instalment Amount to be notified to the Fiscal Agent, the Bank, each of the
Paying Agents, the Noteholders, any other Calculation Agent appointed in respect of the Notes that is to
make a further calculation upon receipt of such information and, if the Notes are listed on a stock
exchange and the rules of such exchange or other relevant authority so require, such exchange or other
relevant authority as soon as possible after their determination but in no event later than (i} the
commencement of the relevant Interest Period, if determined prior to such time, in the case of
notification to such exchange of a Rate of Interest and Interest Amount, or (i) in all other cases, the
fourth Business Day after such determination. Where any Interest Payment Date or Interest Peried Date
is subject to adjustment pursuant to this Condition 4, the Interest Amounts and the Interest Payment
Date so published may subsequently be amended (or appropriate alternative arrangements made by way
of adjustment) without notice in the event of an extension or shortening of the Interest Period. If the
Notes become due and payable under Condition 8, the accrued interest and the Rate of Interest payable
in respect of the Notes shall nevertheless continue to be calculated as previously in accordance with this
Condition but no publication of the Rate of Interest or the Interest Amount so calculated need be made.
The determination of any rate or amount, the obtaining of each quotation and the making of each
determination or calculation by the Calculation Agent(s) shall (in the absence of manifest error) be final
and binding upon all parties.

Caiculagtion Agent and Reference Banks: The Bank shall procure that there shall at all times be four
Reference Banks {or such other number as may be required) with offices in the Relevant Financial
Centre and one or more Calculation Agents if provision is made for them in the relevant Pricing
Supplement and for so long as any Note is outstanding. If any Reference Bank (acting through its
relevant office) is unable or unwilling to continue to act as a Reference Bank, then the Bank shall appoint
another Reference Bank with an office in the Relevant Financial Centre to act as such in its place. Where
more than one Calculation Agent is appointed in respect of the Notes, references in these Conditions to
the Calculation Agent shall be construed as each Calculation Agent performing its respective duties
under the Conditions. If the Calculation Agent is unable or unwilling to act as such or if the Calculation
Agent fails duly to establish the Rate of Interest for an Interest Period or Interest Accrual Period or to
calculate any Interest Amount, Instalment Amount, Final Redemption Amount, Early Redemption
Amount or Optional Redemption Amount, as the case may be, or to comply with any other requirement,
the Bank shall appoint a leading bank or investment banking firm engaged in the interbank market {or, if
appropriate, money, swap or over-the-counter index options market) that is most closely connected with
the calculation or determination to be made by the Calculation Agent {acting through its principal
London office or any other office actively involved in such market) to act as such in its place. The
Calculation Agent may not resign its duties without a successor having been appointed as aforesaid.

Interest — Supplemental Provision
The following Conditions shall be applicable {as appropriate) in relation to all Notes which are
interest bearing.
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“Business Day” means:

®

(ii}

(iif)

in the case of a currency other than euro, a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which
commercial banks and foreign exchange markets setile payments in the principal financial
centre for such currency andfor

in the case of euro, a day on which the TARGET system is operating (a “TARGET Business
Day™) and/or

in the case of a currency and/or one or more Business Centres, a day (other than a Saturday or
a Sunday) on which commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments in such
currency in the Business Centre(s) or, if no currency is indicated, generally in each of the
Business Centres

“Day Count Fraction"” means, in respect of the calculation of an amount of interest on any Note for
any period of time (from and including the first day of such period to but excluding the last)
{whether or not constituting an Interest Period, the “Calculation Period’):

(i)

(ii)
(iif)

{iv)

)

(vi)

if “Actual/365” or “Actual/Actual - ISDA™ is specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement,
the actual number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 365 (or, if any portion of that
Calculation Period falls in a leap year, the sum of (A) the actual number of days in that
portion of the Calculation Pertod falling in a leap year divided by 366 and (B) the actual
number of days in that portion of the Calculation Period falling in a non-leap year divided
by 365)

if “Actual/365 (Fixed)” is specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, the actual number of
days in the Calculation Period divided by 365

if “Actualf360” is specified in the relevant Pricing Sup;;!emem, the actual number of days in
the Calculation Period divided by 360

if “30/360", “360/360" or “Bond Basis" is specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, the
number of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360 (the number of days to be calculated
on the basis of a year of 360 days with 12 30-day months (unless (a) the last day of the
Calculation Period is the 31st day of 2 month but the first day of the Calculation Period is a
day other than the 30th or 31st day of a month, in which case the month that includes that last
day shall not be considered to be shortened to a 30-day month, or (b) the last day of the
Calculation Period is the last day of the month of February, in which case the month of
February shall not be considered to be lengthened to a 30-day month))

if ““30E/360” or “Eurobond Basis” is specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, the number
of days in the Calculation Period divided by 360 (the number of days to be calculated on the
basis of 2 year of 360 days with 12 30-day months, without regard to the date of the first day or
last day of the Calculation Period unless, in the case of a Calculation Period ending on the
Maturity Date, the Maturity Date 1s the last day of the month of February, in which case the
monih of February shall not be considered to be lengthened 10 a 30-day month) and

if “*Actual/Actual-ICMA” is specified in the relevant Priéing Supplement,

(a) if the Calculation Period is equal to or shorter than the Determination Period during
which it falls, the number of days in the Calculation Period-divided by the product of (x)
the number of days in such Determination Period and (y) the number of Determination
Periods normally ending in any year; and

(b) if the Calculation Period is longer than one Determination Period, the sum of:

{x) the number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the Determination Period
in which it begins divided by the product of (1) the number of days in such
Determination Period and (2) the number of Determination Periods normally
ending in any year; and

{y) the number of days in such Calculation Period falling in the next Determination
Period divided by the product of (1) the number of days in such Determination
Period and (2) the number of Determination Periods normally ending in any year
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where:

“Determination Period’ means the period from and including a Determination Date in any year to
but excluding the next Determination Date and

“Determination Date™ means the date specified as such in the relevant Pricing Supplement or, if
none is so specified, the Interest Payment Date

“Effective Date” means, with respect to any Floating Rate to be determined on an Interest
Determination Date, the date specified as such in the relevant Pricing Supplement or, if none is so
specified, the first day of the Interest Accrual Period to which such Interest Determination Date
relates

“Euro-zone” means the region comprised of member states of the European Union that adopt the
single currency in accordance with the Treaty estabiishing the European Community, as amended

“Interest Accrual Period” means the period beginning on {and including) the Interest
Commencement Date and ending on (but excluding) the first Interest Period Date and each
successive period beginning on (and including} an Interest Period Date and ending on (but
excluding) the next succeeding Interest Period Date

“Interest Amount” means the amount of interest payable, and in the case of Fixed Rate Notes,
means the Fixed Coupon Amount or Broken Amount, as the case may be

“Interest Commencement Date” means the [ssue Date or such other date as may be specified in the
relevant Pricing Supplement

“Interest Determination Dale" means, with respect to a Rate of Interest and Interest Accrual
Period, the date specified as such in the relevant Pricing Supplement or, if none is so specified, (i}
the first day of such Interest Accrual Period if the Specified Currency is Sterling or (ii} the day
falling two Business Days in London for the Specified Currency prior to the first day of such Interest
Accrual Period if the Specified Currency is neither Sterling nor euro or (iii) the day falling two
TARGET Business Days prior to the first day of such Interest Accrual Period if the Specified
Currency is euro

“Interest Period” means the period beginning on (and including) the Interest Commencement Date
and ending on (but excluding} the first Interest Payment Date and each successive period beginning
on (and including) an Interest Payment Date and ending on (but excluding) the next succeeding
Interest Payment Date

“Interest Period Date” means each Interest Payment Date unless otherwise specified in the
relevant Pricing Supplement

“ISDA Definitions™ means the 2006 ISDA Definitions, as published by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association, Inc., unless otherwise specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement

“Page” means such page, section, caption, column or other part of a particular information service
(including, but not limited to, Reuters Markets 3000 ("Reuters”) and Telerate (*Telerate)) as may
be specified for the purpose of providing a Relevant Rate, or such other page, section, caption,
column or other part as may replace it on that information service or on such other information
service, in each case as may be nominated by the person or organisation providing or sponsoring the
information appearing there for the purpose of displaying rates or prices comparable to that
Relevant Rate

“Rate of Interest’” means the rate of interest payable from time to time in respect of this Note and
that is either specified or calculated in accordance with the provisions in the relevant Pricing
Supplement

“Reference Banks'' means the institutions specified as such in the relevant Pricing Supplement or, if
none, four major banks selected by the Calculation Agent in the interbank market (or, if
appropriate, money, swap or over-the-counter index options market) that is most closely connected
with the Benchmark {which, if EURIBOR is the relevant Benchmark, shall be the Euro-zone)

“Relevant Financial Centre’” means, with respect to any Floating Rate to be determined in
accordance with a Screen Rate Determination on an Interest Determination Date, the financial
centre as may be specified as such in the relevant Pricing Supplement or, if none is so specified, the
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financial centre with which the relevant Benchmark ts most clasely connected (which, in the case of
EURIBOR, shall be the Euro-zone) or, if none is so connected. London

“Relevant Rate” means the Benchmark for a Representative Amount of the Specified Currency for
a period {if applicable or appropriate to the Benchmark) equal to the Specified Duration
commeuncing on the Effective Date

“Relevant Time” means, with respect to any Interest Determination Date, the local time in the
Relevant Financial Centre specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement or, if no time is specified,
the local time in the Relevant Financial Centre at which it is customary to determine bid and
offered rates in respect of deposits in the Specified Currency in the interbank market in the
Relevant Financial Centre or, if no such customary local time exists, 11.00 hours in the Relevant
Financial Centre and, for the purpose of this definition, “‘local time’’ means, with respect to Europe
and the Furo-zone as a Relevant Financial Centre, Brussels Time

“Representative Amount” means, with respect to any Floating Rate to be determined in
accordance with a Screen Rate Determination on an Interest Determination Date, the amount
specified as such in the relevant Pricing Supplement or, if none is specified, an amount that is
representative for a single transaction in the relevant market at the time

“Specified Currency” means the currency specified as such in the relevant Pricing Supplement or, if
none is specified, the currency in which the Notes are denominated

“Specified Duration’’ means, with respect to any Floating Rate to be determined in accordance with
a Screen Rate Determination on an Interest Determination Date, the duration specified in the
relevant Pricing Supplement or, if none is specified, a period of time equal to the relative Interest
Accrual Period, ignoring any adjustment pursuant to Condition 4.

“TARGET System’’ means the Trans-European Automated Real-Time Gross Settlement Express
Transfer (TARGET) System or any successor thereto.

5. Redemption and Purchase

Unless previously redeemed, or purchased and cancelled, Notes shall be redeemed by the Bank at
their principal amount or at such other redemption amount as may be specified in or determined in the
manner specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement. The Bank may (save as otherwise specified in the
relevant Pricing Supplement) at any time purchase Notes and Coupons on any recognised Stock
Exchange or otherwise. Any Notes or Coupons so purchased shall be promptly delivered to the Issuing
and Paying Agent for cancellation. Any Notes so surrendered for canceliation may not be reissued or
resold and the obligations of the Bank in respect of any such Notes shall be discharged.

Oprional Early Redemption (Put)

If the relevant Pricing Supplement so specifies, the Bank shall, upon the exercise of the relevant
option by the Holder of any Note of the relevant Series, redeem such Note on the date or the next of the
dates specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement at its principal amount (or suchk other redemption
amount as may be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement), together with accrued interest (if any)
thereon. In order to exercise such option, the Holder must, not less than forty-five days before the date so
specified {or such other period as may be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement), deposit the
relevant Note (together, in the case of an interest bearing Definitive Note, with any unmatured Coupons
appertaining thereto) with, in the case of a Bearer Note, any Paying Agent or, in the case of a Registered
Note, the Registrar together with a duly completed redemption notice in the form which is available from
the specified office of any of the Paying Agents or, as the case may be, the Registrar or. in the case of a
Permanent Global Note, with the form of redemption notice endorsed thereon duly completed.

Optional Early Redemption (Cali)

If the relevant Pricing Supplement so specifies, then the Bank may, upon the expiry of the
appropriate notice and subject 10 such conditions as may be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement,
redeem all {but not, unless and to the extent that the relevant Pricing Supplement specifies otherwise,
some only), of the Notes of the relevant Series on the date specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement.
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Fartial Redemption
If the Notes of a Series are to be redeemed at the option of the Bank in part only on any date in
accordance with this Condition 5:

(i) in the case of Bearer Notes, the Notes to be redeemed shall be drawn by lot in such European
city as the Issuing and Paying Agent may specify, or identified in such other manger or in such
other place as the Issuing and Paying Agent may approve and deem appropriate and fair;

(ii) in the case of a Temporary Bearer Global Note or a Permanent Bearer Global Naote, the
Notes to be redeemed shall be selected in accordance with the rules of Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or any other relevant clearing system; and

(iii) in the case of Registered Notes, the Notes shall be redeemed (so far as may be practicable) pro
rata to their principal amounts, provided always that the amount redeemed in respect of each
Note shall be equal to the minimum denomination thereof or an integral multiple thereof,
subject always to compliance with all applicable laws and the requirements of any stock
exchange on which the relevant Notes may be listed.

In the case of the redemption of part only of a Registered Note, a new Registered Note in respect of
the unredeemed balance shall be issued in accordance with the relevant provisions of Condition 2 which
shall apply as in the case of a transfer of Registered Notes as if such new Registered Note were in respect
of the untransferred balance.

6. Payments
Bearer Notes

Payment of amounts (including any accrued interest) due on the redemption of Bearer Notes will be
made against presentation and, save in the case of a partial redemption by reasop of insufficiency of
funds, surrender of the relevant Bearer Notes at the specified office of any of the Paying Agents outside
the United States.

Payment of amounts due in respect of interest on Bearer Notes will be made:

(i) in the case of a Temporary Global Note or Permanent Global Note, against presentation of
the relevant Temporary Global Note or Permanent Global Note at the specified office of any
of the Paying Agents outside the Upited States and, in the case of a Temporary Giobal Note,
upon due certification of non-US ownership (except with respect to Notes having a maturity of
less than one year, in which case certification is not required) as required therein;

(it} in the case of Definilive Notes without Coupons attached thereto at the time of their initial
delivery, against preseniation of the relevant Definitive Notes at the specified office of any of
the Paying Agents outside the United States; and

(iit) in the case of Definitive Notes delivered with Coupons attached thereto, against surrender of
the relevant Coupons at the specified office of any of the Paying Agents outside the United
States.

Payments of interest in US dollars in respect of Bearer Notes may only be made at the specified
offices of Paying Agenis outside the United States of America, except that such payments may be made
at the specified office of a Paying Agent in New York City if (i) the Bank shall have appointed Paying
Agents with specified offices outside the United States of America with the reasonable expectation that
such Paying Agents would be able to make payment at such offices of the full amount of the interest on
the Notes in US dollars when due, (ii) payment of the full amount of such interest at all specified offices of
the Paying Agents outside the United States of America is illegal or effectively precluded by exchange
controls or other similar restrictions, and (ii{) the relevant payment is permitted by applicable US law.

No payment of principal of or any premium, interest or other amounts on Bearer Notes shall be
made by cheque mailed to any address in the United States or by transfer to an account maintained by a
Noteholder with a bank located in the United States, except as may be permitted by U.S. federal tax law
in effect at the time of such payment without the imposition of a reporting requirement, backup
withholding or other detriment to the Bank.

No Paying Agent in the United Kingdom shall, unless and until the Bank notifies the Noteholders to
the contrary in accordance with Condition 11 below, make any paymenl of interest against presentation
of Coupons.
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The initial Paying Agents (including the Issuing and Paying Agent) and their specified offices are
listed below. The Bank may at any time vary or terminate the appointment of the Issuing and Paying
Agent or any Paying Agent and appoint another [ssuing and Paying Agent or additional or other Paying
Agents, provided that it will at all times maintain a Paying Agent and a Transfer Agent, each having a
specified office in Luxembourg, so long as the Notes are listed on the regulated market of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Notice of any such termination or appointment and of any changes in the
specified offices of the Issuing and Paying Agent or any Paying Agent will be given in accordance with
Condition 11 below.

Bearer Notes should be presented for redemption together with all unmatured Coupons relating
thereto, failing which either the face value of the missing unmatured Coupons {or in the case of a partial
payment of principal that proportion of the aggregate amount of the missing unmatured Coupons that the
principal paid bears to the principal due) will be deducted from the sum due for payment or, if the face
value of the missing unmatured Coupons cannot be determined, the missing unmatured Coupons will
become void. The amounts so deducted will be paid against surrender of the relevant Coupons within five
years from the due date of such Coupons.

If any date for the payment of any amount due (whether in respect of principal, interest or
otherwise) in respect of any Bearer Notes is not a Business Day, the hotder shall not be entitled 10
payment until the next following Business Day nor to any interest or other sum in respect of such
postponed payment. If the due date for redemption of any Bearer Note is not a due date for payment of a
Coupon, interest accrued from the preceding due date for payment of a Coupon shall only be payable
against surrender of the relevant Bearer Note.

Registered Notes

Payment of amounts (including any accrued interest) due on the final redemption of Registered
Notes will be made against presentation and, save in the case of a partial redemption by reason of
insufficiency of funds, surrender of the relevant Registered Notes at the specified office of the Registrar
or the Transfer Agent. If the due date for payment of the final redemption amount of Registered Notes is
not a Business Day, the Holder thereof will not be entitled to payment thereof until the next folowing

such Business Day and no further payment shall be due in respect of such delay save in the event that

there is a subsequent failure to pay in accordance with these Terms and Conditions.

Payment of amounts (whether principal, interest or otherwise) due in respect of Registered Notes
will be paid to the Holders thereof (or, in the case of joint Holders, the first-named) as appearing in the
register kept by the Registrar as at opening of business (local time) on the fifteenth Relevant Banking
Day before the due date for such payment (the “Record Date”) provided that amounts due in respect of
Registered Notes will be paid to the Holders thereof {or, in the case of joint Holders, the first-named) as
appearing in such register as at opening of business {local time) on the date on which such payment is
made.

Payments of interest in respect of Registered Notes will be made by a cheque drawn on a bank in
the Relevant Financial Centre o, in the case of a payment in euro, on a bank in the principal financial
centre of a member state of the Eurcpean Community and posted to the address (as recorded in the
register held by the Registrar) of the Holder thereof (or, in the case of joint-Holders, the first-named) on
the Business Day immediately preceding the relevant date for payment unless at least four Business Days
prior to such date the Holder thereof {or, in the case of joint Holders, the first named) has applied to the
Registrar for payment to be made to a designated account (in the case aforesaid, a non-resident account
with an authorised foreign exchange bank).

7.  Prescription

Notes will become void unless surrendered for payment within a period of ten years and Coupons
will become void unless surrendered for payment within a period of five years, in each case from the due
date for payment.

B. Repayment in the Event of Default

Any Noteholders may deliver or cause to be delivered to the Bank at its office in Tunis Belvedere,
Tunisia {with a copy to the principal office in Abidjan, Céte d’Ivoire), written notice that such haolder
elects to declare the principal of all Notes held by him 1o be due and payable in the event that:
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(a) the Bank fails to pay the principal of or interest on any of the Notes for a continuous periad of
ninety days after the same shall have become due and payable; or

(b} the Bank fails to perform its obligations under Condition 3 for a continuous period of ninety
days; or

{c) =any other bond, note or loan of a maturity of more than one year issued, assumed or
guaranteed by the Bank either (i) is declared due and payable prior to the due date for
payment thereof by reason of default by the Bank or (ii) is nat repaid at maturity as extended
by the period of grace, if any, applicable thereto and such default continues for ninety days,

and on the thirtieth day after such notice shall be so delivered to the Bank the principal of such Notes and
the accrued interest thereon shall become due and payable, unless prior to that time all such defaults
thereto existing shall have been cured.

9.  Replacement of Notes and Coupons

If any Note or Coupon is mutilated. defaced, lost, stolen or destroyed, it may be replaced at the
specified office of the Issuing and Paying Agent on payment by the claimant of such costs 2s may be
incurred in connection therewith and on such terms as to evidence and indemnity as the Bank may
require. Mutilated or defaced Notes and Coupons must be surrendered before replacements will be

issued.

10. Modification

The Bank and the Issuing and Paying Agent may agree without the consent of the Noteholders or
holders of Coupons to any modification of these Terms and Conditions or to any modification of, waiver
or authorisation of any breach or proposed breach of or on any failure to comply with, the Issuing and
Paying Agency Agreement, which is not, in the reasonable opinions of the Bank and the Issuing and
Paying Agent, matenally prejudicial to the interests of the Noteholders,

11. Notices

Any notice to holders of Bearer Notes required to be given by these Terms and Conditions or the
Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement shall be given by publication in (i) a leading daily newspaper in
London (which is expected to be the Financial Times) and (ii) so long as the Notes are listed on the
regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and the rules of that exchange 50 require, (1) in a
leading daily newspaper in Luxembourg (which is expected to be the d'Wort) or (2) on the internet
website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (www.bourse.lu). Such notice shall be deemed to have been
given on the date of such publication or, if published more than once, or on different dates, on the first
date on which publication shall have been so made.

Unless otherwise specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, notices to Holders of Registered
Notes will be deemed to be validly given by publication (1) in a leading daily newspaper in Luxembourg
(which is expected to be the d’Wort) or (2) on the internet website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange
(www.bourse.lu). Such notice shall be deemed to have been given on the date of such publication or, if
pubiished more than once, or on different dates, on the first date on which publication shall have been so
made. Notices may also be sent by first class mail to Holders of Registered Notes (or, in the case of joint
Helders, to the first-named in the register kept by the Registrar} at théir respective addresses as recorded
in the register kept by the Registrar, and will be deemed to have been validly given on the fourth Business
Day after the date of such mailing.

All notices to the Bank or the Issuing and Paying Agent hereunder shall be deemed to have been
given when received in writing by the relevant party at the following address, or such other address as
shall be published in accordance with the above paragraph: the Bank, African Development Bank,
15 Avenue de Ghana, Angle Rues Hedi Nouira et, Pierre de Coubertin, B.P. 323, 1002 Tunis Belvedere,
Tunisia (Attention: Vice President for Finance) (with a copy to African Development Bank, 01 B.P. 1387,
Abidjan 01, Coie d'Ivoire (Attention: Vice President for Finance}); and the Issuing and Paying Agent,
Citibank, N.A. of 5 Carmelite Street, London ECAY QPA, Telex: 940500 CITIUK G, Fax: +44 207 508
3876/7/8/9 { Attention: Global Agency and Trust Services).

12, Further Issues -

The Bank may from time to time, without the consent of the Noteholders or Couponholders, issue
further notes, having terms and conditions the same as those of the Notes, or the same except for the
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amount of the first payment of interest, which may be consolidated and form a single Series with the
Notes,

13. Governing Law and Jurisdiction

The Notes, the Coupons and the Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement are governed by and will be
construed in accordance with the laws of England, except as otherwise specified in the relevant Pricing
Supplement,

Except as otherwise specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, in relation to any legal action or
proceedings arising out of or in connection with the Notes or the Coupons (*Proceedings’), the Bank
hereby irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of the competent couris of England and waives any
objection to Proceedings in such courts whether on the grounds that the Proceedings have been brought
in an inconvenient forum or otherwise. This submission is made for the benefit of each of the Noteholders
and the Covponholders and shall not affect the right of any of them to bring Proceedings in any other
court of competent jurisdiction nor shall the bringing of any Proceedings in one or more jurisdictions
preclude the bringing of any Proceedings in any other jurisdiction (whether concurrently or not).

Except as otherwise specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement, the Bank irrevocably appoints
Law Debenture Corporate Services Limited situated at Fifth Floor, 100 Wood Street, London
EC2V 7EX, United Kingdom (or such other person or persons, with an address in London, as may be
approved by the Issuing and Paying Agent from time to time} as its agent to receive service of process on
its behalf in any Proceedings which may be instituted in England. The Bank will procure that, so long as
any of the Notes remains outstanding, there shall be in force an appointment of such person approved in
writing by the Issuing and Paying Agent with an office in London with authority to accept service as
aforesaid. Nothing herein shall affect the right 10 serve process in any other manner permitted by law. If
at any time the appointment of the agent aforesaid shall cease for any reason, the Bank shall forthwith
appoint another person in Londen to be its agent as’aforesaid and, failing such appointment within thirty
days after demand by the Issuing and Paying Agent, the Issuing and Paying Agent shall be entitled by
notice to the Bank to appoint a person in London to act as such agent.

14, Contracts {Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999
No person shall have any right to enforce any term or condition of the Notes under the Contracts
(Rights of Third Parties) Act 1999.

38



USE OF PRO

The net proceeds of the issue of each Series of N
resources of the Bank and used in its ordinary operati

24

CEEDS

otes will be incorporated in the ordinary capital

ons.

39



SUMMARY OF PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE NOTES WHILE IN GLOBAL FORM

Each Series of Notes in bearer form will initially be represented by a Temporary Global Note in
bearer form without Coupons which will be deposited on behaif of the subscribers of the relevant Notes
with a common depositary (the “Common Depositary™) for Euroclear and for Clearstream. Luxembourg
on or about the issue date of the relevant Notes. No interest will be payable in respect of a Temporary
Global Note except as provided below. Upon deposit of the Temporary Global Note with the Common
Depositary, Euroclear or Clearstream, Luxembourg will credit each subscriber with a principal amount of
Naotes equal to the principal amount thereof for which it has subscribed and paid.

Each of the persons shown in the records of Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg as the
holder of a Note represented by a Global Note must look solely to Euroclear and/or Clearstream,
Luxembourg (as the case may be) for his share of each payment made by the Bank to the bearer of such
Global Note and in relation to all other rights arising under the Global Notes, subject to and in
accordance with the respective rules and procedures of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. Such
persons shall have no claim directly against the Bank in respect of payments due on the Notes for so long
as the Notes are represented by such Global Note and such obligations of the Bank will be discharged by
payment to the bearer of such Global Note in respect of each amount so paid.

The Temporary Global Notes and the Permanent Global Notes (referred to below) contain
provisions which apply 10 the Notes while they are in global form, some of which modify the effect of the
Terms and Conditions of the Notes set out in this document. The following is 2 summary of certain of
those provisions:

Exchange

Each Temporary Global Note will be exchangeable in whole or in part for interests in a Permanent
Global Note or, if so stated in the relevant Pricing Supplement, for Definitive Notes after the date falling
40 days after the closing date of the Series represented by such Temporary Global Note upon certification
as to non-US beneficial ownership in the form set out in the Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement. Each
Permanent Global Note is exchangeable in accordance with its terms in whole but not in part only for
Definitive Notes by such holder depositing the relevant Permanent Global Note with the Issuing and
Paying Agent with the form of exchange notice endorsed thereon duly completed.

In exchange for any Permanent Global Note, the Bank will deliver or procure the delivery (free of
charge to the holder) of, an equal agpregate principal amount of duly executed and authenticated
Definitive Notes (if appropriate, having attached to them all Coupons in respect of interest which have
not already been paid on the Permanent Global Note), security printed in accordance with any applicable
legal and stock exchange requirements and in or substantially in the form scheduled to the Issuing and
Paying Agency Agreement within 30 days of the holder requesting such exchange. On exchange of each
Permanent Global Note, the Bank will, if the holder so requests, procure that it is cancelled and returned
to the holder together with the relevant Definitive Notes.

Payments

No payment falling due more than 40 days after the closing date of any Series represented by a
Temporary Global Note will be made on that Temporary Global Note unless exchange for an interest in a
Permanent Global Note or a Definitive Note is improperly withheld or refused. Payments on any
Temporary Global Note during the period of 40 days after the closing date of such Series will only be
made against presentation of certification as to non-US beneficial ownership in the form set out in the
Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement. All payments in respect of Notes represented by a Global Note
will be made against presentation for endorsement and, if no further payment falls due to be made in
respect of the Notes, surrender of that Global Note to or to the order of the Issuing and Paying Agent or
such other Paying Agent as shall have been notified to the Noteholders for such purpose. A record of
each payment so made will be endorsed in the appropriale schedule to each Global Note, which
endorsement will be prima facie evidence that such payment has been made in respect of the Notes.

Purchase and Cancellation

Cancellation of any Note surrendered for cancellation following its purchase will be effected by
reduction in the principal amount of the relevant Global Note.
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RISK FACTORS

The following section does not describe all of the risks and investment considerations (including those
relafing to each prospective investor’s particular circumstances) with respect to an investment in Notes.
Prospective investors should refer to the relevant pricing supplement for each particular issue of Notes,
which may describe additional risks and investment considerations associated with such Notes. In addition,
prospective investors should consult their own financial and legal advisors as to the risks and investrent
considerations arising from an investment in an issue of Notes, the appropriate resources to analyse such
investment (in particular, to evaluate the sensitivity of such investment to changes in economic conditions,
interest rate, exchange rate or other indices, and other factors which may have a bearing on the merits and
risks of an investment), and the suitability of such investment in such investor’s particular circumstances.
Words and expressions defined or used in “Terms and Conditions of the Notes” shall have the same
meaning in this section.

Structure Risks

An ipvestment in a Structured Note (as defined below) issued by the Bank entails risks (which may
be significant) not associated with an investment in a conventional debt security issued by the Bank.
A “Structured Note™ is a Note with principal or interest determined by reference to one or more interest
rate indices or currency or currency units (including exchange rates and swap indices between currencies
or currency units), or one or more debt or equity indices or formulae (each an “Applicable Index’)
(other than a single conventional interest rate index or formula, such as LIBOR) or features such as
embedded options, caps or floors. Such risks may include, without limitation, the possibility that an
Applicable Index may be subject to significant changes, that changes in an Applicable Index may not
correlate with changes in interest rates or exchange rates generally or with changes in other indices, that
two or more indices or formulae that may be expected to move in tandem or in any other relation to each
other may unexpectedly converge or diverge or otherwise not move as expected, that the resulting
interest rate may be less than that payable on a conventional debt security issued by the Bank at the same
time or that no interest may be payable, that the repayment of principal may occur at times other than
those expected by the investor, that the investor may lose all or a substantial portion of the principal
amount of its Note (whether payable at maturity, upon redemption or otherwise), that Structured Notes
may have more volatile performance results, and that the effects of currency devaluations and (as
discussed in greater detail under “Risk Factors - Exchange Rate Risks and Exchange Controls’) the
imposition or modification of exchange or other capital controls by authorities with jurisdiction over a
relevant currency may be greater for Structured Notes than for conventional debt securities issued by the
Bank. Such risks generally depend on a number of factors, including financial, economic and political
events over which the Bank has no control. In addition, if an Applicable Index used to determine the
amount of interest payable contains a spread multiplier or if the Applicable Index used to determine the
principal or interest payable is subject to some other leverage factor, the effect of any change in such
Applicable Index on the principal or interest may be magnified. If an Applicable Index includes, or is
subject to, a maximum (“cap’’) or minimum (*‘floor’”) interest rate hmitation, the interest or principal
payable on such Structured Note may be less than that payable on a conventional debt security issued by
the Bank at the same time. Two issues of Structured Notes issued at the same time and with interest rates
determined by reference to the same Applicable Index and otherwise comparable terms may have
different interest rates and yields when issued and thereafter if the frequency of interest rate adjustments
for each issue is different. In recent years, certain interest rates, currencies, currency units, exchange
rates, equity indices and other indices have been highly volatile and such volatility may continue in the
future. Fluctuations in any particular interest rate, currency, currency unit, exchange rate, equity index or
other index that have occurred in the past are not necessarily indicative, however, of fluctuations that may
occur in the future.

The timing of changes in the level of an Applicable Index may affect the actual yield to an investor,
even if the average level is consistent with the investor’s expectation. In general, the earlier a change in
the level of an Applicable Index occurs, the greater the effect on an investor’s yield. This is especially the
case with Structured Notes providing for repayment of principal at one or more times prior to maturity.
As a result, the effect on an investor’s yield of an Applicable Index level that is lower {or higher) during
earlier periods than the rate anticipated by the investor may not be offset by a later equivalent increase
(or reduction).

Any optional redemption feature of Notes is likely to affect the market value of such Notes. During
any period in which such Notes are subject to redemption at the option of the Bank, their market value
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generally will not nise substantially above the redemption price because of the increased likelihood of
redemption by the Bank, and this also may be true prior to any such period. The Bank may be expected
to redeem such Notes in circumstances where the Bank's cost of borrowing is lower than the interest rate
on such Notes. At such times, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest redemption proceeds at
an effective interest rate which is as high as the interest rate on such Notes, and such reinvestment might
only be at a significantly lower rate. Investors should consider the related reinvestment risk in light of
other investments that may be available to such investors. A partial redemption of an issue of Notes also
may adversely affect liquidity for the remaining outstanding Notes of such issue.

Investors in Structured Notes should have knowledge of and access to appropriate analytical
resources to analyse quantitatively the effect (or value) of any redemption, cap or floor, or certain other
features of such Structured Notes, and the resulting impact upon the value of such Structured Notes.

Market, Liquidity and Yield Considerations

Notes may not have an established trading market when issued. There can be no assurance of a
secondary market for any Notes or the liquidity of such market if one develops. Consequently, investors
may not be able to sell their Notes readily or at prices that will enable them to realise a yield comparable
to that of similar instruments, if any, with a developed secondary market. This is particularly the case for
Structured Notes that are especially sensitive to interest rate, currency or market risks, that are designed
for specific investment objectives or strategies or that have been structured to meet the investment
requirements of limited categories of investors, which may have a more limited secondary market and less
or no liquidity and may experience more price volatility than conventional debt securities. Liquidity may
have a severely adverse effect on the market value of Structured Notes.

Depending upon the type of Notes, market conditions and other factors, investors seeking to sell
relatively small or relatively large amounts of Notes may not be able to do so at prices comparable 1o
those that may be available to other investors.

The secondary market for an issue of Notes will also be affected by a number of other factors
independent of the creditworthiness of the Bank and, in the case of Structured Notes, the value of any
Applicable Index. These factors may include the complexity and volatility of such Applicable Index, the
method of calculating the principal or any interest to be paid in respect of such Notes, the time remaining
to the maturity of such Notes, the outstanding amount of such Notes, any amortisation or optional
redemption features of such Notes, the amount of other securities linked to such Applicable Index, the
amount of such Notes being sold in the secondary market from time to time, any legal restrictions limiting
demand for such Notes, the availability of comparable securities, and the level, direction and volatility of
market interest rates generally. Such factors also will affect the market value of the Notes.

No investor should purchase Notes unless such investor understands and is able to bear the risk that
certain Notes may not be readily saleable, that the value of Notes will fluctuate over time, and that such
fluctuations may be significant and could result in significant losses to such investor. This is particularly
the case for investors whose circumstances may not permit them to hold the Notes until maturity.

Exchange Rate Risks and Exchange Controls

As described in this Information Memorandum, Notes may be denominated or payable in one of a
number of currencies. For investors whose financial activities are denominated principally in a currency
(the “Investor’s Currency”) other than the Specified Currency or where principal or interest on Nates is
payable by reference to a Specified Currency index other than ap index relating to the Investor’s
Currency, an investment in the Notes entails significant risks that are not associated with a similar
investment in a security denominated ip that Investor's Currency. Such risks include, without limitation,
the possibility of significant changes in the rate of exchange between the Specified Currency and the
Investor's Currency and the possibility of the imposition or modification of exchange controls by the
country of the Specified Currency or the Investor’s Currency. Such risks generally depend on economic
and political events over which the Bank has no control. In recent years, rates of exchange have been
highly volatile and such volatility may be expected to continue in the future. Fluctuations in any
particular exchange rate that have occurred in the past are not necessarily indicative, however, of
fluctuations that may occur in the future. Depreciation of the Specified Currency against the Investor’s
Currency would result in a decrease in the Investor's Currency equivalent yield on a Note denominated in
that Specified Currency. in the Investor’s Currency equivalent value of the principal payable at maturity
of such Note and generally in the Invester's Currency equivalent market value of such Note. An
appreciation of the Specified Currency against the Investor's Currency would have the opposite effect,
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In addition, depending on the specific terms of a Note denominated in, or the payment of which is related
to the value of, one or more foreign currencies, changes in exchange rates relating to any of the currencies
involved may result in a decrease in such Note's effective yield and, in certain circumstances, could resuit
in a loss of all or a substantial portion of the principal of a Note to the investor. Further information as to
current and historical exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and the Specified Currency or, if the Bank
thinks tt appropriate, the Investor's Currency and the Specified Currency may be contained in the
applicable Pricing Supplement.

Governments have imposed from time to time, and may in the future impose or modify, exchange
controls which could affect exchange rates as well as the availability of a specified foreign currency at the
time of payment of principal of, premium, if any, or interest on a Note. Even if there are no actval
exchange controls, it is possible that the Specified Currency for any particular Note may not be available
when payments on such Note are due.

. Legal Investment Considerations
Investors should consult their own legal advisors in determining whether and to what extent Notes
constitute Jegal investments for such investors and whether and to what extent Notes can be used as
collateral for various types of borrowings. In addition, financial institutions should consult their legal
advisors or regulators in determining the appropriste treatment of Notes under any applicable risk-based
capital or similar rules.

Investors whose investment activities are subject to investment laws and regulations or to review or
regulation by certain authorities may be subject to restrictions on investments in certain types of debt
securities, which may include Notes. Investors should review and consider such restrictions prior to
investing in Notes.
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TAXATION

GENERAL

Each Series of Notes and the interest thereon will not be exempt from taxation generally. Under the
Agreement, the Notes and the interest thereon are not subject to any tax by a member country (a) which
tax discriminates against the Notes solely because they were issued by the Bank or (b) if the sole
junisdictional basis for the tax is the place or currency in which the relevant Series of Notes are issued,
made payable or paid, or the location of any office or place of business maintained by the Bank. Also,
under the Agreement, the Bank is exempt from any obligation for the payment, withholding or collection
of any tax. Accordingly, the interest due on the Notes will be paid to the Issuing and Paying Agent
without deduction in respect of any tax.

UNITED STATES FEDERAL INCOME TAXATION

EACH TAXPAYER IS HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT: (A) ANY DISCUSSION OF UNITED
STATES FEDERAL TAX ISSUES IN THIS INFORMATION MEMORANDUM IS NOT
INTENDED OR WRITTEN TO BE USED, AND CANNOT BE USED BY THE TAXPAYER,
FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING PENALTIES THAT MAY BE IMPOSED ON THE
TAXPAYER UNDER THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED; (B) ANY
SUCH DISCUSSION IS WRITTEN TO SUPPORT THE PROMOTION OR MARKETING OF THE
TRANSACTION OR MATTERS ADDRESSED HEREIN; AND (C) THE TAXPAYER SHOULD
SEEK ADVICE BASED ON ITS PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES FROM AN INDEPENDENT
TAX ADVISER.

General

The following is a general summary of the material U.S. federal income tax considerations that may
be relevant with respect to the ownership of the Notes. This summary does not address the material U.S.
federal income tax consequences of every type of Note which may be issued under the Facility, and the
relevant Pricing Supplement may contain additional or modified disclosure concerning the material U.S.
federal income tax consequences relevant to such type of Notes as are issued thereunder. This summary
addresses only the U.S. federal income tax considerations of holders that acquire the Notes at their
original issuance and Issue Price (as defined below under * Original Issue Discount — General”) and that
will hold the Notes as capital assets.

This summary does not purport to address all U.S. federal income tax matters that may be relevant
to a particular holder of Notes (a ‘‘Noteholder™). This summary does not address tax considerations
applicable to Noteholders that may be subject to special tax rules including, without limitation, the
following: (i} financial institutions; (ii) insurance companies; (iii} dealers or traders in securities or
currencies; (iv) tax-exempt entities; (v) persons that will bold the Notes as part of a “hedging” or
“conversion’ transaction or as a position in a “straddle™ for U.S. federal income tax purposes; (vi)
persons that own (or are deemed to own) 10 per cent. or more of the voting shares of the Bank; and (vii)
persons that have a “functional currency™ other than the U.S. doliar. Further, this summary does not
address alternative minimum tax consequences or the indirect effects on the holders of equity interests in
a Noteholder.

This surnmary is based on the U.S. [nternal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™),
proposed, temporary and final U.S. Treasury regulations (together, the “U.S. Treasury Regulations”)
promulgated thereunder and judicial and administrative interpretations thereof, in each case as in effect
and available on the date of this Information Memorandum. All of the foregoing are subject to change or
differing interpretations, which could apply retroactively and could affect the tax consequences described

below.

This summary assumes that the Notes issued under this program are treated as debt for U.S. federal
income tax purposes. It is possible that certain Notes issued under this program such as Index-Linked
Notes, Notes with long maturities or, in some cases, Subordinated Notes may be characterised as
instruments other than debt for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Each prospective investor should
consult its own tax adviser with respect to the proper characterisation of the Notes for U.S. federal
income tax purposes. Each prospective investor should also consult its own tax adviser with respect to the
U1.S. federal, state, local and {oreign tax consequences of acquiring, owning or disposing of the Motes.

For. the purposes of this summary, a “U.S. Holder” is a beneficial owner of Notes that is, for U.S.
federal income tax purposes: (i) a citizen or individual resident of the United States; (ii) a corporation
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created or organised in or under the laws of the United States or any state thereof (including the District
of Columbia); (iii) an estate the income of which is subject to U.S. federal income taxation regardless of
its source; or (iv) a trust if {x) a court within the United States is able to exercise primary supervision over

its administration and (y) one or more United States persons (as defined in the Code) have the authority -

to control all of the substantial decisions of such trust or if it has made a valid election under U.S.
Treasury regulations to be treated as a domestic trust. A “Non-U.S. Holder” is a beneficial owner of
Notes that is, for U.S. federal income tax purposes, an individual, corporation, trust or estate that is not a
U.S. Holder.

If an entity or arrangement treated as a partnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes holds a
Note, the U.S. federal income tax treatment of a partner generally will depend upon the status of the
pariner and the activities of the partnership. A partner of a partnership holding a Note should consult it
own tax adviser regarding the U.S. federal income tax consequences to the partner of the acquisition,
ownership and disposition of a Note by the partnership.

THE SUMMARY OF U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES SET OUT BELOW
IS FOR GENERAL INFORMATION ONLY. PROSPECTIVE FPURCBASERS SHOULD
CONSULT THEIR TAX ADVISERS AS TO THE PARTICULAR TAX CONSEQUENCES TO
THEM OF OWNING THE NOTES, INCLUDING THE APPLICABILITY AND EFFECT OF
STATE, LOCAL, FOREIGN AND OTHER TAX LAWS AND POSSIBLE CHANGES IN TAX
LAW.

Taxation of U.S. Holders
Payments of Interest

Interest paid on a Note, other than interest on a “Discount Note” that is not “qualified stated
interest™ (each as defined below under “Original Issue Discount - General™), will be taxable to a U.S.
Holder as ordinary interest income at the time it is received or accrued, depending on the U.S. Holder’s
method of accounting for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

i an interest payment is denominated in, or determined by reference to, a foreign currency, in the
case of a U.S. Holder utilising the cash method of accounting for U.S. federal income tax purposes, the
amount of interest income in respect of any interest payment will be determined by translating such
payment into U.S dollars at the spot exchange rate in effect on the date such interest payment is received,
regardless of whether the payment is in fact converted into U.S. dollars. No exchange gain or loss will be
realised with respect to the receipt of such interest payment, other than exchange gain or loss that is
attributable to the actual disposition of the foreign currency received.

In the case of a U.S. Holder utilising the accrual method of accounting for U.S. federal income tax
purposes and a U.S. Holder that uses the cash method of accounting as to any class of Discount Notes (as
defined below), the amount of any interest income accrued during any accrual period may be determined
in accordance with either of two methods. Under the first accrual method, the amount of income accrued
is based on the average exchange rate in effect during the interest accrual period or, with respect to an
accrual period that spans two taxable years, the part of the period within the taxable year. Under the
second accrual method, the U.S. Holder may elect to determine the amount of income accrued on the
basis of the exchange rate in effect on the last day of the accrual period or, in the case of an accrual period
that spans two taxable years, the exchange rate in effect on the last day of the part of the period within the
taxable vear. If the last day of the accrual period is within five business days of the date the interest
payment is actually received, an electing accrual basis U.S. Holder may instead translate the interest
payment at the exchange rate in effect on the day of actual receipt. Any election to use the second accrual
method will apply to all debt instruments held by the U.S. Holder at the beginning of the first taxable year
to which the election applies or thereafter acquired by the U.S. Holder and will be irrevocable without
the consent of the U.S. Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS™).

A U.S. Holder using ¢ither of the foregoing two accrual methods will recognise ordinary income or
loss with respect to accrued interest incomie on the date of receipt of the interest payment (including a
payment attributable to accrued but unpaid interest upon the sale or retirement of a Note). The amount
of ordinary income or loss will be the difference between the U.S. dollar value of the interest payment
received (determined on the date the payment is received) in respect of the accrual period and the U.S.
dotlar value of interest income ihat has accrued during that accrual period (as deiermined under the
accrual method used by the U.S. Holder).
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Foreign currency received as interest on the Notes will have a tax basis equal to its U.S. dollar value
at the time the interest payment is received. Gain or loss, if any, realised by a U.S. Holder on a sale or
other disposition of that foreign currency will be ordinary income or loss and will generally be income or
loss from sources within the United States for foreign tax credit limitation purposes.

Interest income on the Notes will be treated as foreign source income for U.S. federal income tax
purposes, which may be relevant in calculating a U.S. Holder's foreign tax credit limitation for USS.
federal income tax purposes. The limitation on foreign taxes eligible for the U.S. foreign tax credit is
calculated separately with respect to specific classes of income. Prospective purchasers should consult
their tax advisers as to the availability of and limitations on any foreign tax credit.

Original Issue Discount

General

A Note, other than a Note with a term of one year or less a (“‘Short-term Note™), will be treated as
issued at an original issue discount (“OID™ and a Note issued with OID a “Discount Note™) for U.S.
federal income tax purposes if the excess of the sum of all payments provided under the Note, other than
“qualified stated interest payments” (as defined below), over the “Issue Price” (as defined below) of the
Note is more than a “de minimis amount” (as defined below). “‘Qualified stated interest” is generally
interest paid on a Note ihat is unconditionally payable at least annually at a single fixed rate. The “Issue
Price” of the Notes will be the first price at which a substantial amount of the Notes are sold to persons
other than bond houses, brokers, or similar persons or organisations acting in the capacity of
underwriters, placement agents, or wholesalers. Special rules for “Variable Rates Notes’ are described
below under “QCriginal Issue Discount - Variable Rate Notes”.

In general, if the excess of the sum of all payments provided under the Note other than qualified
stated interest payments {the Note’s ‘‘stated redemption price at maturity™) over its Issue Price is less
than % of one per cent. of the Note's stated redemption price at maturity multiplied by the number of
complete years to its maturity (the ‘““de minimis amount”), then such excess, if any, constitutes
“de minimis OID”’ and the Note is not a Discount Note. Unless the election described below under
“FElection to Treat All Interest as OID" is made, a US. Holder of a Note with de minimis QOID must
include such de minimis OID in income as stated principal payments on the Note are made. The
includable amount with respect to each such payment will equal the product of the total amount of the
Note's de minimis OID and a fraction, the numerator of which is the amount of the principal payment
made and the denominator of which is the stated principal amount of the Note,

A US. Holder will be required to include OID on a Discount Note in income for U.S. federal
income tax purposes as it accrues calculated on a tonstant-yield method (described below) generally
before the actual receipt of cash attributable to that income, regardiess of the U.S. Holder's method of
accounting for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Under this method, U.S. Holders generally will be
required to include in income increasingly greater amounts of O1D over the life of Discount Notes.

The amount of OID includable in income by a U.S. Holder of a Discount Note is the sum of the
daily portions of OID with respect to the Note for each day during the taxable year or portion of the
taxable year on which the U.S. Holder holds that Note (*accrued OID™). The daily portion is determined
by allocating to each day in any “‘accrual period” a pro rata portion of the QID allocated to that accrual
period. Accrual periods with respect to a Note may be of any length selected by the U.S. Holder and may
vary in length over the term of the Note as long as (i) no accrual period is longer than one year and (ii)
each scheduled payment of interest or principal on the Note occurs on either the final or first day of an

accrual period.

The amount of OID allocated to an accrual period equals the excess of (a) the product of the Note's
“adjusted issue price” at the beginning of the accrual period and the Note's yield to maturity (determined
on the basis of compounding at the close of each accrual period and properly adjusted for the length of
the accrual period) over (b) the sum of the payments of qualified stated interest on the Note atlocated to
the accrual period. The “adjusted issue price™ of a Note at the beginning of any accrual period is the Issue
Price of the Note increased by (x) the amount of accrued OID for each prior accrual period and
decreased by (y) the amount of any payments previously made on the Note that were not quatified stated
interest payments,

For the purposes of determining the amount of OID allocated to an accrual period, if an interval
between payments of qualified stated interest on the Noie contains more than one accrual period, the
amount of qualified stated interest payable at the end of the interval (including any qualified stated
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interest that is payable on the first day of the accrual period immediately following the interval) is
allocated pro rata on the basis of relative lengths to each accrual period in the interval, and the adjusted
issue price at the beginning of each accrual period in the interval must be increased by the amount of any
qualified stated interest that has accrued prior to the first day of the accrual period but that is not payable
until the end of the interval.

The amount of OID allocated to an initial short accrual period may be computed using any
reasonable method if all other accrual periods other than a final short accrual period are of equal iength.
The amount of OID allocable to the final accrual period is the difference between (x) the amount payable
at the maturity of the Note (other than any payment of qualified stated interest) and (y) the Note’s
adjusted issue price as of the beginning of the final acerual period.

OID for any accrual period on a Note (other than a Note that is subject to the CPDI Regulations, as
described below)- that is denominated in, or determined by reference to, a foreign currency will be
determined in that foreign currency and then translated into U.S. dollars in the same manner as interest
payments accrued by an accrual basis U.S. Holder, as described under " Payments of Interest” above.
Upon receipt of an amount attributable to OID in these circumstances, a U.S. Holder may recognise
ordinary income or loss.

QID on a Discount Note will be treated as foreign source income for the purposes of calculating a
U.S. Holder’s foreign tax credit limitation. The limitation on foreign taxes eligible for the U.S. foreign tax
credit is calculated separately with respect to specific classes of income. Prospective purchasers should
consult their tax advisers as to the availability of and limitations on any foreign tax credit.

Variable Rate Notes. Under the U.S. Treasury regulations dealing with OID, Floating Rate Notes
and Indexed-Linked Notes (*Variable Rate Notes") are subject to special rules whereby a Variable Rate
Note will qualify as a ““variable rate debt instrument'" if (a) the Issue Price of the Note does not exceed
the total non-contingent principal payments by more than the lesser of (i) the product of {(x) the total non-
contingent principal payments, (y) the number of complete years to maturity from the issue date and (z)
(.015, or (ii) 15 per cent. of the total non-contingent principal payments; and (b) the Note provides for
stated interest compounded or paid at least annually at (i) one or more “qualified floating rates”, (ii) a
single fixed rate and one or more qualified floating rates, (iii) a single “‘objective rate” or (iv) a single
fixed rate and a single objective rate that is a “‘qualified inverse floating rate”.

A qualified floating rate or objective rate in effect at any time during the term of the instrument
must be set at a “current value” of that rate. A “current value” of a rate is the value of the rate on any
day that is no earlier than three months prior to the first day on which that value is in effect and no later
than one year following that first day.

A variable rate is a “qualified floating rate” if (i) variations in the value of the rate can reasonably
be expected to measure contemporaneous variations in the cost of newly borrowed funds in the currency
in which the Note is denominated or (ii} it is equal to the product of such a rate and either (a) a fixed
multiple that is greater than 0.65 but not more than 1.35, or (b} a fixed multiple greater than 0.65 but not
more than 135, increased or decreased by a fixed rate. If a Note provides for two or more qualified
fioating rates that {i) are within 0.25 percentage points of each other on the issue date or (i) can
reasonably be expected to have approximately the same values throughout the term of the Note, the
qualified floating rates together constitute a single qualified floating rate. A rate is not a qualified fioating
rate, however, if the rate is subject to certain restrictions (including caps, floors, governors, or other
similar restrictions) unless such restrictions are fixed throughout the term of the Note or are not
reasonably expected to significantly affect the yield op the Note.

An “objective rate’ is a rate, other than a qualified floating rate, that is determined using a single
fixed formula and that is based on objective financial or economic information that is not within the
control of or unique to the circumnstances of the Bank or a related party (such as dividends, profits or the
value of the Bank's stock). A variable rate is not an objective rate, however, if it is reasonably expected
that the average value of the rate during the first half of the Note's term will be either significantly less
than or significantly greater than the average value of the rate during the final half of the Note's term. An
objective rate is a “*qualified inverse floating rate” if {1} the rate is equal 1o a fixed rate minus a qualified
floating rate, and (ii) the variations in the rate can reasonably be expected to inversely reflect
contemporaneous variations in the gualified floating rate.

If interest on a Note is stated at a fixed rate for an initial period of one year or less followed by
either a gqualified floating rate or an objective rate for a subsequent period and (i) the fixed rate and the
qualified floating rate or objective rate have values on the issue date of the Note that do not differ by
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more than (.25 percentage points or (i) the value of the qualified floating rate or objective rate is
intended to approximate the fixed rate, the fixed rate and the qualified floating rate or the objective rate
constitute a single qualified floating rate or objective rate.

In general, if a Variable Rate Note provides for stated interest at a single qualified floating rate or
objective rate, all stated interest on the Note is qualified stated interest and the amount of OID, if any, is
determined under the rules applicable to fixed rate debt instruments by using, in the case of a qualified
floating rate or qualified inverse floating rate, the value as of the issue date of the qualified floating rate or
qualified inverse floating rate, or, in the case of any other objective rate, a fixed rate that reflects the yield
reasonably expected for the Note.

If a Variable Rate Note does not provide for stated interest at a single qualified floating rate or a
single objective rate and also does not provide for interest payable at a fixed rate (other than at a single
fixed rate for an initial period), the amount of interest and OID accruals on the Note are generally
determined by (i) determining a fixed rate substitute for each variable rate provided under the Variable
Rate Note (generally, the value of each variable rate as of the issue date o1, in the case of an objective
rate that is not a qualified inverse floating rate, a rate that reflects the reasonably expecied yield on the
Note), (ii) constructing the equivalent fixed rate debt instrument (using the fixed rate substitutes
described above), (iii} determining the amount of qualified stated interest and OID with respect to the
equivalent fixed rate debt instrument, and (iv) making the appropriate adjustments for actual variable
rates during the applicable accrual period.

If a Variable Rate Note provides for stated interest either at one or more qualified floating rates or
at a qualified inverse floating rate, and in addition provides for stated interest at a single fixed rate (other
than at a single fixed rate for an initial period), the amount of interest and OID accruals are determined
as in the immediately preceding paragraph with the modification that the Variable Rate Note is treated,
for the purposes of the first three steps of the determination, as if it provided for a qualified floating rate
(or a qualified inverse floating rate, as the case may be) rather than the fixed rate. The qualified fioating
rate {or qualified inverse floating rate) replacing the fixed rate must be such that the fair market value of
the Variable Rate Note as of the issue date would be approximately the same as the fair market value of
an otherwise identical debt instrument that provides for the qualified floating rate {or qualified inverse
floating rate) rather than the fixed rate.

Contingent Payment Note. If a Variable Rate Note does not qualify as a “variable rate debt
instrument” or if any Note provides for one or more contingencies and is not otherwise exempt from the
contingent payment debt instrument rules, then the Variable Rate Note or any such Note would be
treated as a contingent payment debt instrument under the OID Treasury Regulations.

In general, the US. Treasury regulations dealing with contingent payment debt instruments
(“CPDI Regulations™) would cause the timing and character of income, gain or loss reported on a
contingent payment debt instrument to substantially differ from the timing and character of income, gain
or loss reported under general principles of current U.S. federal income tax law. The CPDI Regulations
generally require a U.S. Holder of such an instrument to include future contingent and non-contingent
interest payments in income as such interest accrues based upon a projected payment scheduie.
Moreover, in general, under the CPDI Regulations, any gain recoguised by a U.S. Holder on the sale,
exchange, or retirement of a contingent payment debt instrument will be treated as ordinary income and
all or a portion of any loss realised could be treated as ordinary loss as opposed to capital loss (depending
upon the circumstances).

Under the non-contingent bond method, for each accrual peried prior to and including the maturity
date of the Note, the amount of interest that accrues, as OID, equals the product of (i) the adjusted issue
price and (ii) the “comparable yield” (adjusted for the length of the accrual period). This amount is
ratably allocated to each day in the accrual period and is includable as ordinary interest income by a U.S.
Holder for each day in the accrual period on which the U.S. Holder holds the Note. The adjusted issue
price for purposes of the non-contingent bond method is equal to the Note's Issue Price, increased by the
interest previously accrued on the Note and decreased by the amount of any Projected Payments (as
defined below) previously made on the Note. The “comparable yield” is the annual yield that the Bank
would pay, as of the issue date, on a fixed rate debt instrument with no contingent payment but with terms
and conditions otherwise comparable to those of the Note. Amounts treated as interest under the
foregoing contingent payment obligation rules are treated as OID for all US. federal income tax
purposes.
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Under the non-contingent bond methed, the Bank would be required, solely for U.S. federal income
tax purposes, to provide a schedule (the *‘Schedule’) of the projected amounts of payments (the
“Projected Payments'") on the Note. The Schedule must produce the comparable yieid. If during any
taxable year the sum of any actual payments (including the fair market value of any property received in
that year) with respect to the Note for that taxable year (including, in the case of the taxable year which
includes the maturity date of the Note, the amount of cash received at maturity} exceeds the total amount
of Projected Payments for that taxable year, the difference will prodice a “net positive adjustment”,
which will be treated as additional interest for the taxable year. If the actual amount received in a taxable
year is less than the amount of Projected Payments for that taxable year, the difference will produce a
“net negative adjustment”, which will {i) reduce the U.S. Holder's interest income for that taxable year
and (ii} to the extent of any excess after application of (i), give rise to an ordinary loss to the extent of the
1J.S. Holder's interest incoine on the Note during the prior (axable years {reduced to the extent such
interest was offset by prior net negative adjustments). As a result of the classification of a Note as a
contingent payment debt instrument subject to the non-contingent bond method, any gain or loss realised
on the sale or exchange of the Note may be treated as ordinary income or loss, in whole or in part.

Special rules apply to determine the accrual of OID, and the amount, timing, source and character
of any gain or loss on a Note subject to the CPDI regulations that is denominated in a foreign currency (a
“Foreign Currency Contingent Note”), including certain non-contingent Notes whose payments are
denominated in, or are determined by reference to, more than one foreign currency. The rules applicable
to Foreign Currency Contingent Notes are complex, and U.S. Holders are urged to consult their tax
advisers concerning the application of these rules.

Under these rules, a U.S. Holder of a Foreign Currency Contingent Note will generally be required
to accrue OID in the foreign currency in which the Foreign Currency Contingent Note is denominated
(i) at a yield at which the Bank would issue a fixed rate debt instrument denominated in the same foreign
currency with terms and conditions similar to those of the Foreign Currency Contingent Note, and (ii) in
accordance with a projected payment schedule determined by the Bank, under rules similar to those
described above. The amount of OID on a Foreign Currency Contingent Note that accrues in any accrual
period will be the product of the comparable yield of the Foreign Currency Contingent Note (adjusted to
reftect the length of the accrual period) and the adjusted issue price of the Foreign Currency Contingent
Note. The adjusted issue price of a Foreign Currency Contingent Note will generally be determined
under the rules described above, and will be denominated in the foreign currency of the Foreign Currency
Contingent Note.

O1ID on a Foreign Currency Contingent Note will be translated into U.S. dollars under translation
rules similar to those described above under “ Payments of Interest”’. Any posttive adjustment (i.e. the
excess of actual payments over projected payments) in respect of a Foreign Currency Contingent Note
for a taxable year will be translated into U.S. dollars at the spot rate on the last day of the taxable year in
which the adjustment is taken into account. The amount of any negative adjustment on a Foreign
Currency Contingent Note (i.e. the excess of projected payments over actual payments) that is offset
against accrued but unpaid OID will be translated into U.S. dollars at the same rate as which such OID
was accrued. To the extent a net negative adjustment exceeds the amount of accrued but unpaid OID, the
negative adjustment will be treated as offsetting OID that has accrued and been paid on the Foreign
Currency Contingent Note, and will be translated into U.S. doliars at the spot rate on the date the
Foreign Currency Contingent Note was issued. Any net negative adjustment carry forward will be carried
forward in the relevant foreign currency.

Prospective purchasers should consult their own tax advisers regarding the applicability and
consequences of the contingent payment debt instrument rules to any of the Notes issued under the
Facility.

Notes Subject to Redemption. Certain of the Notes (i) may be redeemable at the option of the Bank
prior to their maturity (a “call option') and/or (ii) may be repayable at the option of the holder prior to
their stated maturity (a “‘put option). Notes containing such features may be subject to rules that are
different from the general rules discussed above. Investors intending to purchase Notes with such features
should consult their own tax advisers, since the OID consequences of acquiring, holding, and disposing of
such Notes will depend, in part, on the particular terms and features of the purchased Notes.

Short-Term Notes. Short Term Notes (i.e., Notes that have a fixed maturity of one year or less) will
be treated as having been issued with OID. In general, an individual or other cash method U.S. Holder is
not required to accrue such OID unless the U.S. Helder elects to do so. If such an election is not made,
any gain recognised by the U.S. Holder on the sale. exchange or maturity of the Short-Term Note will be
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ordinary income to the extent of the OlD accrued on a straight-line basis, or upon election under the
constant yield method (based on daily compounding), through the date of sale or maturity, and a portion
of the deductions otherwise allowable to the U.S. Holder for interest on borrowings allocated to the
Short-Term Note will be deferred until a corresponding amount of income is realised. U.S. Holders who
report income for U.S. federal income tax purposes under the accrual method, and certain other holders
including banks and dealers in securities, are required to accrue OID on a Short-Term Note on a straight-
line basis unless an election is made to accrue the OID under a constant yield method (based on daily

compounding).

Election 1o Treat All Interest as O1D. A U.S. Holder may elect to include in gross income all interest
that accrues on a Note using the constant-yield method described above under the heading *“ Original
Issue Discount — General” with the modifications described below. For the purposes of this election,
interest includes stated interest, OID, de minimis OID and unstated interest, as adjusted by any
amortisable bond premium (described below).

In applying the constant-yield method to a Note with respect to which this election has been made,
the issue price of the Note will equal its cost to the electing U.S. Holder, the issue date of the Note will be
the date of its acquisition by the electing U.S. Holder, and no payments on the Note will be treated as
payments of qualified stated interest. This election will generally apply only to the Note with respect to
which it is made and may not be revoked without the consent of the IRS. However, if this election is
made with respect to a Note with amortisable bond premium, then the electing U.5. Holder will be
deemed to have elected to apply amortisable bond premium against interest with respect to alt debt
instruments with amortisable bond premium (other than debt instruments the interest on which is
excludible from gross income) held by the electing U.S. Holder as of the beginning of the taxable year in
which the Note with respect to which the election is made is acquired or thereafter acquired. The deemed
election with respect to amortisable bond premium may not be revoked without the consent of the IRS.

Notes Purchased at a Premium

A U.S. Holder that purchases a Note for an amount in excess of its principal amount (or, for a
Discount Note, its stated redemption price at maturity) may elect to treat such excess as “amortisable
bond premium”, If such election is made, the amount required to be included in the U.S. Holder’s income
each year with respect to interest on the Note will be reduced by the amount of amortizable bond
premium allocated (based on the Note's yield to maturity) to such year. In the case of a Note that is
denominated in, or determined by reference to, a foreign currency, amortisable bond premium will be
computed in units of foreign currency and will reduce interest income in units of foreign currency. A U.S.
Holder realises exchange gain or loss (taxable as ordinary income or loss) equal to the difference between
exchange rates at that time and at the time of the acquisition of the Notes. Any election to amortise bond
premium shall apply 1o all debt instruments {other than debt instruments the interest in which is
excludable from gross income) held by the UJ.S. Helder at the beginaing of the first taxable year to which
the election applies or thereafter acquired by the U.S. Holder and is irrevocable without the consent of
the IRS.

Sale, Exchange or Retirement of the Notes

Notes other than Foreign Currency Contingent Notes. A U.S. Holder's tax basis in a2 Note will
generally equat its “U.S. dollar cost”, increased by the amount of any OID included in the U.S. Holder’s
income with respect to the Note and the amount, if any, of income attributable to de minimis OID
included in the U.S. Holder's income with respect to the Note (each as determined above), and reduced
by the amount of any payments with respect to the Note that are not qualified stated interest payments
and the amount of any amortisable bond premium applied to reduce interest on the Note. The “U.S.
dollar cost” of a Note purchased with a foreign currency will generally be the U.S. doitar value of the
purchase price on the date of purchase or, in the case of Notes traded on an established securities market
(as defined in the applicable U.S. Treasury regulations) that are purchased by an accrual basis U.S.
Holder that so elects, on the settlement date for the purchase.

U.S. Holder will generally recognise gain or loss on the sale, exchange or retirement of a Note equal
to the difference between the amount realised on the sale, exchange or retirement that is not attributable
1o accrued but unpaid interest (which is accounted for as if it were an interest payment in the manner
described above under '‘Payments of Interest”™) and the tax basis of the Note. The amount realised on the
sale, exchange or retirement of a Note for an amount in foreign currency will be the U.S. dollar value of
that amount on (1) the date the payment is received in the case of a cash basis U.S. Holder, (2) the date of
disposition in the case of an accrual basis U.S. Holder, or (3) in the case of a Note traded on an
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established securities market (as defined in the app]icab]e U.S. Treasury regulations) that is sold by a cash
basis U.S. Holder (or an accrual basis U.S. Holder that so elects), on the settlement date for the sale.

Gain or loss recognised by a U.S. Holder on the sale, exchange or retirement of a Note that is
attributabie to changes in currency exchange rates will be ordinary income or loss and will consist of OID
exchange gain or loss and principal exchange gain or loss. OID exchange gain or loss will equal the
difference between the U.S. dollar value of the amount received on the sale, exchange or retirement of a

Note that is attributable to accrued but unpaid OID as determined by using the exchange rate on the date .

of the sale, exchange or retirement and the U.S. dollar value of accrued but unpaid OID as determined by
the U.S. Holder under the rules described above under “Original Issue Discount-General”. Pnncipal
exchange gain or loss will equal the difference between the U.S. dollar value of the U.S. Holder's
purchase price of the Note in foreign currency determined on the date of the sale, exchange or
retirement, and the U.S. dollar value of the U.S. Holder's purchase price of the Note in foreign currency
determined on the date the U.S. Holder acquired the Note. The foregoing foreign currency gain or loss
will be recognised only to the extent of the total gain or loss realised by the U.S. Holder on the sale,
exchange or retirement of the Note and will generally be treated as from sources within the United States
for U.S. foreign tax credit limitation purposes.

Any gain or loss recognised by a U.S. Holder in excess of foreign currency gain recognised on the
sale, exchange or retirement of a Note would generally be U.S. source capital gain or loss {except to the
extent such amounts are attributable to accrued but unpaid interest, or subject to the general rules
governing contingent payment debt instruments). Prospective investors should consult their own tax
advisors with respect to the treatment of capital gains (which may be taxed at lower rates than ordinary
income for taxpayers that are individuals, trusts or estates that held the Notes for more than one year)
and capital losses (the deductability of which is subject to significant limitations).

Foreign Currency Contingent Notes. Upon a sale, exchange or retirement of a Foreign Currency
Contingent Note, a U.S. Holder will generally recognise taxable gain or loss equal to the difference
between the amount realised on the sale, exchange or retirement and the U.S. Holder’s tax basis in the
Foreign Currency Contingent Note, both translated into U.S. dollars as described below. A U S. Holder’s
tax basis in a Foreign Currency Contingent Note will equal (i) the cost thereof (translated into U.S.
dotllars at the spot rate on the issue date), {it) increased by the amount of OID previously accrued on the
Foreign Currency Contingent Note (disregarding any positive or negative adjustments and translated into
.S, dollars using the exchange rate applicable to such OID) and (ii{) decreased by the projected amount
of all prior payments in respect of the Foreign Currency Contingent Note. The U.S. doliar amount of the
projected payments described in clause (iii) of the preceding sentence is determined by (i} first allocating
the payments to the most recently accrued OID to which prior amounts have not already been allocated
and translating those amounts into U.S. dollars at the rate at which the OID was accrued and (ii) then
allocating any remaining amount to princtpal and translating such amount into U.S. dollars at the spot
rate on the date the Foreign Currency Contingent Note was issued. For this purpose, any accrued OID
reduced by a negative adjustment carry forward will be treated as principal.

The amount realised by 2 U.S. Holder upon the sale, exchange or retirement of a Foreign Currency
Contingent Note will equal the amount of cash and the fair market value (determined in foreign
currency) of any property received. If a U.S. Holder holds a Foreign Currency Contingent Note until its
scheduled maturity, the U.S. dollar equivalent of the amount realised wili be determined by separating
such amount realised into principal and one or more OID components, based on the principal and OID
comprising the U.S. Holder's basis, with the amount realised allocated first to OID (and allocated to the
most recently accrued amounts first) and any remaining amounts allocated to principal. The U.S. doflar
equivalent of the amount realised upon a sale, exchange or unscheduled retirement of a Foreign Currency
Contingent Note will be determined in a similar manner but will first be allocated to principal and then
any accrued Q1D (and will be allocated to the earliest accrued amounts first). Each component of the
amount realised will be translated into U.S. dollars using the exchange rate used with respect to the
corresponding principal or accrued OID. The amount of any gain realised upon a sale, exchange or
unscheduled retirement of a Foreign Currency Contingent Note wiil be equal to the excess of the amount
realised over the holder's tax basis, both expressed in foreign currency, and will be translated into U.S.
dollars using the spot rate on the payment date. Gain from the sale or retirement of a Foreign Currency
Contingent Note will generally be treated as interest income taxable at ordinary income (rather than
capital gains) rates. Any loss will be ordinary loss to the extent that the U.S. Holder’s total OID
inclusions to the date of sale or retirement exceed the total net negative adjustments that the U.S. Holder
took into account as ordinary loss, and any further loss will be capital loss. Gain or loss (other than loss
treated as capital loss) realised by a U.S. Holder on the sale or retirement of a Foreign Currency
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Contingent Note will generally be foreign source. Any capital loss will generally be U.S. source.
Prospective purchasers should consult their tax advisers as to the foreign tax credit implications of the
sale or retirement of Foreign Currency Contingent Notes,

A U.S. Holder will also recognise U.S. source exchange rate gain or loss (taxable as ordinary income
or loss) on the receipt of foreign currency in respect of a Foreign Currency Contingent Note if the
exchange rate in effect on the date the payment is received differs from the rate applicable to the
principal or accrued OID to which such payment relates.

Disposition of Foreign Currency i

A U.S. Holder will have a tax basis in any foreign currency received on the sale, exchange or
retirement of a Note equal 1o the US. doilar value of the foreign currency at the time of the sale,
exchange or retirement. Gain or loss, if any, realised by a U.S. Holder on a sale or other disposition of
that foreign currency will be ordinary income or loss and will generally be income from sources within the
United States for foreign tax credit limitation purposes.

Taxation of Non-U.S. Holders

Payments on the Notes and pain from the sale, redemption or other disposition of the Notes
generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income or withholding tax in the hands of a Non-U.S. Holder
(i) unless that payment and/or gain is effectively connected with the conduct by that Non-U.S. Holder of a
trade or business within the United States or (ii) in the case of any gain realised on the sale or exchange of
a Note by an individual Non-U.S. Holder, that holder is present in the United States for 183 days or more
in the taxable year of the sale, exchange or retirement and certain other conditions are met. Noteholders
that are Non-U.S. Holders should consult their own tax advisers regarding the U.S. federal income and
other tax consequences of owning Notes.

Tax Return Disclosure and Investor List Requirements

U.S. Treasury regulations (the ‘“Tax Shelter Regulations’} intended to address so-calied tax shelters
and other potentially tax-motivated transactions require participants in a “‘reportable transaction”™ to
disclose certain information about the transaction on IRS Form 8886 and retain information relating to
the transaction. Penalties may apply to any taxpayer who fails to timely file an information return with
the IRS with respect to a reportable transaction. Organisers and sellers of reportable trapsactions are
required to maintain lists identifying the transaction investors and furnish to the IRS upon demand such
investor information as well as detailed information regarding the transactions. A transaction may be a
“reportable transaction” based upon any of several indicia, including the existence of confidentiality
agreements, certain indemnity arrangements, potential for recognizing investment or other losses, or
significant book-tax differences, one or more of which may be present with respect to or in connection
with an investment in the Notes. In addition, the Tax Shelter Regulations could be interpreted to cover
and require reporting of transactions that are generally not considered tax shelters, including certain
foreign currency transactions. Investors should consult their tax advisers concerning any possible
disclosure obligation with respect to their investment and should be aware that the Bank and other
participants in the Facility intend to comply with the disclosure and list maintenance requirements under
the Tax Shelter Regulations as they determine apply to them with respect to this Facility.

‘Taxation provisions of the Agreement

The imposition of U.S. federal income tax in the manner described above is not inconsistent with
the Agreement, which provides that the Notes and the interest thereon are not subject to any tax by a
member (a) which tax discriminates against the Notes solely because they are issued by the Bank or (b) if
the sole jurisdictional basis for the tax is the place or currency in which the Notes are issued, made
payabile or paid, or the location of any office or place of business maintained by the Bank. Also, under the
Agreement, the Bank is not under any obligation to withhold or pay any tax on the interest on the Notes.

Backup withhelding and information reporting

Backup withholding and information reporting requirements may apply to certain payments on the
Notes and proceeds of the sale or redemption of the Notes that are paid to U.S. Holders and are made
within the United States or by certain U.S. or U.S.-controlled paying agents. The Bank is not subject to
the reporting requirements, and the backup withholding requirements do not apply to the Bank or its
paying agent. Information returns may, however, be filed with the IRS by the Bank’s paying agent with
regard to certain payments on Notes made within the United States to certain U.S. Hoiders if such
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returns are otherwise required of the paying agent. In addition, brokers, trustees, custodians and other
intermedianes may be subject to the reporting and backup withholding requirements with respect to
certain payments received by them on the Notes held for the account of certain U.S. Holders. Certain
U.S. Hoiders (including, among others, corporations) are not subject to the backup withholding and
information reporting requirements. U.S. Holders who establish an exemption by providing their
taxpayer identification number, generally on IRS Form W-9, will not be subject to backup withholding.
Non-U.S. Holders may be required to comply with applicable certification procedures to establish that
they are not U.S. Holders in order to avoid the application of information reporting requirements and
backup withholding. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. Any amounts withkeld under the
backup withholding rules from a payment to a holder generally may be claimed as a credit against such
holder’s U.S. federal income tax liability provided that the required information is furnished to the IRS.
Potential investors should consult their own tax advisors regarding the applicability and consequences of
information reporting and backup withholding.
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RELATED DERIVATIVES TRANSACTIONS

In connection with the issuance of Notes, the Bank may enter into negotiated currency andfor
interest rate swaps or other financial derivative transactions. The Bank's counterparty in any such
derivative transaction may be an institution that is also acting as Dealer with respect to the Notes, or an
affiliate of a Dealer. Payments to be made and received by the Bank under any such derivative
transaction may be calculated on the basis of the amounts payable by the Bank under the Notes and the
proceeds payable to the Bank in connection with the sale of the Notes, either before or after deduction of
the commissions described in the related Pricing Supplement. The Bank’s rights and obligations under
any such derivative transaction will be wholly independent of its rights and obligations under the Notes,
and the holders of the Notes will have no interest in any such derivative transaction or any payment to
which the Bank may be entitled thereunder.
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SUBSCRIPTION AND SALE

Notes may be issued and sold from time to time by the Bank to any one or more of Citigroup Global
Markets Limited, Barclays Bank PLC, BNP Paribas, Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited, Daiwa
Securities SMBC Europe Limited, Dresdner Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Goldman Sachs International,
HSBC Bank pic, ].P. Morgan Securities Litd., Lehman Brothers International {Europe}, Merrill Lynch
International, Mitsubishi UFJ Securities International ple, Mizuho International plc, Morgan Stanley &
Co. International plc, Nomura International ple, Société Générale, Standard Bank Ple, Standard
Chartered Bank and The Toronto-Dominion Bank (the “Dealers”} or to any other person. The
arrangements under which Notes may from time to time be agreed to be issued and sold by the Bank to,
and purchased by, Dealers are set out in an amended and restated dealer agreement dated 6 July 2007
(the “Dealer Agreement”, which expression includes any further amendment or supplements thereto or
restatements thereof), and made between the Bank and the Dealers. Any such agreement will infer alia
make provision for the form and terms and conditions of the relevant Notes, the price at which such
Notes will be purchased by the Dealers and the commissions or other agreed deductibles (if any) payable
or allowable by the Bank in respect of such purchase. The Dealer Agreement makes provision for the
resignation or replacement of existing Dealers and the appointment of additional or other Dealers.

The Bank has acknowledged that other than the listing of the Facility and/or any individual series of
Notes on the regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange or such other listing authority, stock
exchange, regulatory exchange and/or quotation system as may be agreed between the Issuer and the
relevant Dealer no action has been or will be taken in any jurisdiction by the Bank that would permit a
public offering of Notes, or possession or distribution of any offering material in relation thereto, in any
country or jurisdiction where action for that purpose is required. The Bank has confirmed that it will
comply with all laws and regulations applicable to it in each country or jurisdiction in which it purchases,
offers, sells or delivers Notes or has in its possession or distributes such offering material, in all cases at its
own expense.

The Bank and the Dealers have severally confirmed that, in relation to each issue of Notes, they will
comply with all applicable laws, regulations and market or other regulatory guidelines applicable to the
respective party as are in force from time to time which are relevant in the context of the issue of such
Notes, including, without limitation, any relevant maturity requirements and minimum denomination
requirements applicable to such issue, and shall submit (or procure the submission of) such reports or
information as may from time to time be required for compliance with such laws, regulations and market
or other regulatory guidelines.

United States of America

Under the provisions of Section 9(A)} of the African Development Bank Act, the Notes are
exempted securities within the meaning of Section 3(a)(2) of the Securities Act and Section 3(a){12) of
the US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

Bearer Notes with a maturity of more than one year are subject to US tax law requirements. Subject
to certain exceptions, Bearer Notes may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United States or to
US persons. Each Dealer has agreed that it will not offer, sell or deliver a Bearer Note within the United
States or to US persons except as permitted by the Dealer Agreement.

The following legend will appear on all Global Notes in bearer form. definitive Bearer Notes and
Coupons. “‘Any United States person who holds this obligation will be subject to iimitations under the
United States income 1ax laws including the limitations provided in Section 165(3) and 1287(a) of the
Internal Revenue Code™.

Each issuance of Notes may be subject to such additional US seliing restrictions which, if required,

will be specified in the relevant Pricing Supplement. Each Dealer has agreed and will agree that it wiil
offer, sell or deliver such Notes only in compliance with such additional US selling restrictions.

United Kingdom

Each Dealer has severally represented and warranted that it has complied and wiil comply with all
applicabie provisions of the FSMA with respect to anything done by it in relation to any Notes in, from or
otherwise involving the United Kingdom.
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Japan

Each Dealer has acknowledged that the Notes have not been and will not be registered under the
Securities and Exchange Law of Japan (the “Securities and Exchange Law"). Accordingly, each Drealer
has represented, warranted and agreed that it has not, directly or indirectly, offered or sold and will not,
directly or indirectly, offer or sell any Notes in Japan or to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Japan
{which term as used herein means any person resident in Japan, including any corporation or other entity
organised under the laws of Japan) or to others for re-offering or re-sale, directly or indirectly, in Japan or
to, or for the benefit of, any resident of Japan except pursuant {0 an exemption from the registration
requirements of, and otherwise in compliance with, the Securities and Exchange Law and other relevant
laws, regulations and ministeriai guidelnes of Japan.

The Netherlands

Each Dealer has severally represented and agreed that in respect of Zero Coupon Notes (as defined
below) in definitive form of the Bank may only be transferred and accepted, directly or indirectly, within,
from or into The Netherlands through the mediation of either the Bank or an admitted institution of
Euronext Amsterdam N.V., (toegelaten instelling), in accordance with the Dutch Savings Certificates Act
(Wet inzake spaarbewijzen) of 21 May 1985 (as amended). No such mediation is required (a) in respect of
the transfer and acceptance of rights representing an interest in a Zero Coupon Note in global form, or
(b) in respect of the initial issue of Zero Coupon Notes in definitive form to the first holders thereof, or
{c) in respect of the transfer and acceptance of Zero Coupon Notes in definitive form between individuals
not acting in the conduct of a business or profession, or (d) in respect of the transfer and acceptance of
such Zero Coupon Notes within, from or into The Netherlands if all Zero Coupon Notes (either in
definitive form or as rights representing an interest in a Zero Coupon Note in global form) of any
particular Series are issued outside The Netherlands and are not distributed into The Netherlands in the
course of initial distribution or immediately thereafter. In the event that the Savings Certificates Act
applies, certain identification requirements in relation to the issue and transfer of, and payments on, Zero
Coupon Notes have to be complied with. As used herein “Zero Coupon Notes” are Notes that are in
bearer form and that constitute a claim for a fixed sum against the Bank and on which interest does not
become due during their tenor or on which no interest is due whatsoever.

Singapore
Each Dealer has acknowledged that this Information Memorandam has not been registered as a

prospectus with the Monetary Authority of Singapore. Ac¢cordingly, each Dealer has represented,

warranted and agreed that it has not offered or sold any Notes or caused the Notes to be made the subject
of an invitation for subscription or purchase and will not offer or sell any Notes or cause the Notes to be
made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase, and has not circulated or distributed, nor
will it circulate or distribute, this Information Memorandum or any other document or material in
connection with the offer or sale, or invitation for subscription or purchase, of the Notes, whether directly
or indirectly, to persons in Singapore other than (i) to an institutional investor under Section 274 of the
Securities and Futures Act, Chapter 289 of Singapore (the “SFA’'), (ii) to a relevant person pursuant to
Section 275(1), or to any person pursuant to Section 275(1A), and in accordance with the conditions
specified in Section 275, of the SFA or (iil) otherwise pursuvant 1o, and in accordance with the conditions
of, any other applicable provision of the SFA.

Where the Notes are subscribed or purchased under Section 275 of the SFA by a relevant person
which is:
(a) a corporation (which is not an accredited investor (as defined in Section 4A of the SFA)) the

sole business of which is to hold investments and the entire share capital of which is owned by
one or more individuals, each of whom is an accredited investor; or

(b) a trust (where the trustee is not an accredited investor) whose sole purpose is to hold
investments and each beneficiary of the trust is an individual who is an accredited investor,

shares, debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation or the beneficiaries’ rights and
interest (howsoever described) in that trust shall not be transierred within six months after that
corporation or that trust has acquired the Notes pursuant to an offer made under Section 275 of the SFA
except:

1. to an institutional investor {for corporations, under Section 274 of the SFA) or to a relevant
person defined in Section 275(2) of the SFA. ar to any person pursuaat to an offer that is made
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on terms that such shares, debentures and units of shares and debentures of that corporation
or such rights and interest in that trust are acquired at a consideration of not less than
$$200,000 (or its equivalent in a foreign currency) for each transaction, whether such amouant
is to be paid for in cash or by exchange of securities or other assets, and further for
corporations, in accordance with the conditions specified in Section 275 of the SFA;

2. where no consideration is or will be given for the transfer; or

3.  where the transfer is by operation of law.

Australia

No prospectus or other disclosure document (as defined in the Corporations Act 2001 of the
Commonwealth of Australia) in relation to the Notes has been lodged with the Australian Securities and
Investments Commission (**ASIC"). Accordingly, each Dealer has severally agreed that it:

(a) has not made or invited, and will not make or invite, an offer of the Notes for issue or sale in
the Commonwealth of Australia (including an offer or invitation which is received by a person
in the Commonwealth of Australia); and

(b) has not distributed or published, and will not distribute or publish, this Information
Memorandum or any other offering material or advertisement relating to the Notes in the
Commonwealth of Australia,

unless:

(i) the aggregate consideration payable on acceptance of the offer by each offeree is at least
A$500,000 (or its equivalent in an alternate currency) (disregarding moneys lent by the offeror
or its associates) or the offer or invitation otherwise does not require disclosure to investors
under Part 6D.2 of the Corporations Act 2001 of the Commonwealth of Australia;

{if) such action complies with applicable laws, regulations and directives; and

(iii) such action does not require any documents to be lodged with ASIC.

Canada

Each Dealer has acknowledged, represented and agreed that {a} no prospectus has been issued or
will be issued in respect of the Notes for distribution to the public under applicable Canadian securities
laws, and (b) the Notes may not be offered or sold, directly or indirectly, in Canada except in compliance
with applicable securities laws in Canada and accordingly, any sales of the Notes will be made (i) through
a Canadian chartered bank, an appropriately registered securities dealer or in accordance with an
available exemption from the registered securities dealer requirements under applicable securities laws in
Canada; and (ii) pursuant to an exemption from the prospectus requirements of such securities laws.

Each Dealer has agreed not to distribute or deliver the Information Memorandum or any other
offering material relating to the Notes, in Canada in contravention of the securities laws of Canada or any
province or territory thereof.
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FORM OF PRICING SUPPLEMENT

Pro Forma Pricing Supplement for an issue by African Development Bank under its Global Debt
Issuance Facility.

Pricing Supplement dated | )

AFRICAN DEVELOPMENT BANK

Global Debt Issuance Facility
for issues of Notes with maturities of one day or longer

Issue of [Aggregate Principal Amount of Series]
[Title of Notes)

This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement relating to the issue of Notes described herein.
This Pricing Supplement constitutes a Final Terms for the purposes of listing and trading Notes on the
Regulated Market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined
as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the Information Memorandum dated 6 July 2007
[and the supplemental Information Memorandum dated [ 1) This Pricing Supplement contains
the final terms of the Notes and must be read in conjunction with such Information Memorandum [as so

supplemented].

[ The following afternative language applies if the first tranche of an issue which is being increased was
issued under an Information Memorandum with an earfier date.]

This document constitutes the Pricing Supplement relating to the issue of Notes described herein.
This Pricing Supplement constitutes a Final Terms for the purposes of listing and trading Notes on the
Regulated Market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange. Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined
as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the Information Memorandum dated [original
date]. This Pricing Supplement contains the final terms of the Notes and must be read in conjunction with
the Information Memorandum dated [current dare] {and the supplemental Information Memorandum
dated [ ]], save in respect of the Conditions which are extracted from the Information Memorandum
dated [original date] and are attached hereto.]

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as ‘‘Not Applicable” (N/A). Note that the

numbering should remain as set out below, even if “"Not Applicable’ is indicated for individual paragraphs
or sub-paragraphs. Italics denote directions for completing the Pricing Supplement.]

1. Issuer African Development Bank
2. (i) Series Number: [ 1
{ii) Tranche Number: { ]

(If fungible with an existing Series, details of
that Series, including the date on which the
Notes become fungible).

3.  Specified Currency or Currencies: [ ]

4.  Aggregate Nominal Amount:

(i) Series: ( |
(i} Tranche: i }
5. (i) Issue Price: i ] per ceat. of the Aggregate Nominal

Amount [plus accrued interest from finserr date)
(in the case of fungible issues only, if applicable})

(it} Net proceeds: ( ] (Reguired only for listed issues)
i }
(i) Issue Date: { ]
[ ]

6. Specified Denominations:

(ii} Interest Commencement Date:
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10.

11.

12.

13,
14,

15.

*Maturity Date: [{for Fived Rate Notes) specify date or (for Floating
Rate Notes) interest Payment Date falling in or
nearest to the relevant month and year]

Interest Basis: [[  ]9% Fixed Rate] [[specify reference rate] +/—
[ ]% Floating Rate] [Zero Coupon] [Index-
Linked Interest] [Dual Currency Interest)
[Variable Coupon Amount] [Other (specify)]
(further particulars specified below)

Redemption/Payment Basis; [Redemption at par] {Index-Linked Redemption]
[Dual Currency} {Variable Redemption Amount]
[Partly Paid] [Instalment] [Other (specify)]

Change of Interest or Redemption/Payment [Specify details of any provision for convertibility
Basis: of Notes into another interest or redemprion/

payment basis)

Puv/Call Opticos: {Investor Put}
[Issuer Call]
[(further particulars specified below)]
Status of the Notes: [Senior/Subordinated]
Listing and Trading: {The regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock

Exchange for the purposes of Direciive
2004/3%/EC  on  Markets in  Financial
Instrumentsfother (specify)/None)

Method of distribution: [Syndicated/Non-syndicated]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO INTEREST (IF ANY) PAYABLE

16. Fixed Rate Note Provisions [Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable,
delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

(i) Rate[(s)] of Interest: ' [ ] per cent. per annum [payable
[annually/semiannually/ quarterly/monthly] in
arrear)

(i) Interest Payment Date(s): [ ] in each year [adjusted in accordance

with [specify Business Day Convention and any
applicable Business Centre(s) for the definition of
"‘Business Day”’]][, not adjusted]

(iif) Fixed Coupon Amount{(s}}: [ ] pef [ 1 in Nominal Amount

(iv) Broken Amount(s): [Insert particulars of any initial or final broken
interest amount which do not correspond with the
Fixed Coupon Amounif(s)] and the Interest
Payment Date(s) to which they relate]

(v} Day Count Fraction: (30/360/Actual/Actual (ICMA/ISDA)/other]
(Consider if day count fraction, particularly for
Euro denominated issues, should be on an Actual/
Actual basis)

(vi) Determination Date(s): [ 1 [insert regular interest payment dates,
ignoring issue date or maturity date in the case of

a long or short first or last coupon N.B. only
refevant where Day Count Fraction is Actual/
Actual (ICMA)]

If the maturity date of the Notes issued in bearer form is ane year or less select at No. 44 (Applicable TEFRA Rules) that
TEFRA rules are not applicable,
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17.

(vii) Other terms relating to the methed of
calculating interest for Fixed Rate Notes:

Floating Rate Note Provisions

(i) Interest Period(s):
{ii) Specified Interest Payment Dates:

(iii)) Business Day Convention:

(iv) Business Centre(s):

(v) Manner in which the Rate(s) of Interest
isfare to be determined:

(vi) Interest Period Date(s):

(vii} Party responsible for calculating the
Rate(s) of Interest and Interest
Amount(s) (if not the Issuing and
Paying Agent):

(viti} Screen Rate Determination:
~ Relevant Time:

~ Interest Determination Date:

— Primary Source for Floating Rate:

— Reference Banks (if Primary Source is
“Reference Banks"):

— Relevant Financial Centre:

- Benchmark:

~ Representative Amount:

- Effective Date:

- Specified Duration:

(ix) ISDA Determination:
- Floating Rate Option:
- Designated Maturity:
~ Reset Date:

- ISDA Definitions (if different from
those set out in the Conditions:

45

[Not Applicable/give details)

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable,
delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[ ]
{ )

[Floating Rate Business Day Convention/
Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/Preceding
Business Day Convention/other (give details)]

[ I
[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA
Determination/other (give detaifs)]

[Not Applicable/specify dates)
[ ]

{ }

([ ]JI[TARGET] Business Days [in [specify city
for Specified Currency]] prior to [the first day in
each Interest Accrual Period/each Interest
Payment Date]]

[Specify relevant screen page or “Reference
Banks"]

[Specify four]

[ The financial centre most closely connected to the
Benchmark - specify if not London)

(LIBOR, LIBID, LIMEAN, EURIBOR or other
benchmark)

[Specify if screen or Reference Bank quotations
are to be given in respect of a transaction of a
specified notional amount)

[Specify if quotations are not to be obtained with
effect from commencement of Interest Accrual
Period]

{Specify period for quotation if not duration of
Interest Accrial Period)
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18.

19.

20.

(x) Relevant Margin(s):

(xi) Minimum Rate of Interest:
{xii) Maximum Rate of Interest:
(xiii) Day Count Fraction:

(xiv) Rate Multiplier:

{xv} Fall back provisions, rounding
provisions, denominator and any other
terms relating to the method of
calculating interest on Floating Rate
Notes, if different from those set out in
the Conditions:

Zero Coupan Note Provisions

(i) Amonrtisation Yield:
(if) Day Count Fraction:

(iii} Any other formula/basis of determining
amount payable:

Index-Linked Interest Note Provisions

)] " Index/Formula:

(i) Calculation Agent respounsible for
calculating the interest due:

(i} Provisions for determining Coupon
where calculation by reference to Index
and/or Formula 1is impossible or
impracticable:

(iv) Interest Period(s):
(v} Specified Interest Payment Dates:

(vi} Business Day Convention:

(vii) Business Centre(s):

{viii) Minimum Rate of Interest:
(ix) Maximum Rate of Interest:
(x) Day Count Fraction:

Pual Currency Interest Note Provisions

(i) Rate of Exchange/method of calculating
Rate of Exchange:

(i} Calculation Agent, if any, responsible for
calculating the principal and/or interest
due:

46

[+~ ] per cent. per annum

[ ] per cent. per annum
{ ] per cent. per annum
[ ]
{ ]
( )

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable,
delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[ ] per cent. per annum

( ]
{ ]

{Applicable/Not Appticable] (If not appiicable,
delete the remaining subparagraphs of this

paragraph)

[give or annex details)

( !
l )
[ ]
{ ]

[Floating Rate Business Day Convention/
Following Business Day Convention/ Modified
Following Business Day Convention/Preceding
Business Day Convention/other {give details))

[ ]
[ ] per cent. per annum
[ ] per cent. per annum

( ]

[ApplicablefNot Applicable) (If not applicable,
delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this
paragraph)

[give details]
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(i) Provisions applicable where calculation
by reference to Rate of Exchange
impossible or impracticable:

(iv) Person at whose option Specified
Currency(ies) is/are payable:
(v} Day Count Fraction:

21.  Variable Coupon Amount Notes:

PROVISIONS RELATING TO REDEMPTION
22.  Cali Option

(i) Optional Redemption Date(s):

(iiy Optional Redemption Amount(s) of
each Note and method, if any,
of calculation of such amount(s):

(iii) 1f redeemable in part:

(a) Minimum nominal amount to be
redeemed:

(b} Maximum nominal amount (o be
redeemed:

(iv) Option Exercise Date(s):

(v) Description of any other option of the
Bank:

{vi) Notice period {(if other than as se1 out in
the Conditions):

23.  Put Option

(i) Optional Redemption Date(s):

(ii) Optional Redemption Amount(s) of
each Note and method, if any, of
calculation of such amount(s):

(iily Option Exercise Date(s):

{iv) Description of any other Noteholders’
option:

{v} Notice period (if other than as set out in
the Conditions):

24. Final Redemption Amount of each Note
25. Early Redemption Amount

Early Redemption Amouni(s) of each Note

payable on event of default and/or the method

of calculating the same (if required or if
different from that set out in the Conditions):
26. Variable Redemption Amount Notes:

47

( )

[Applicable/Not  Applicable]
describe provisions)

[/f applicable,

[Applicable/Not Applicable] (If not applicable,
delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this

paragraph)

( I

[ ] per Note of [ } specified
denomination

( ]

[ ]

[ I

{ 1

[ )

{Applicable/Not Applicable] (If notr applicable,
delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of this

paragraph)
| ]

{ } per Note of [ | specified
denomination

[ ]

[ ]

{ }

iParfother/see Appendix)

[ ]

[Applicable/Not  Appiicable] [If applicable,

describe provisions)
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GENERAIL PROVISIONS APPLICABLE TO THE NOTES

27

)

29.

30.

3L

32

33.

34,

33.

Form of Notes:

Bearer Notes:

Registered Notes:

Registrar and Transfer Agents
(i) DTC Application

(iii) Australian Domestic Notes:

Relevant Financial Centre(s) or other special
provisions relating to payment dates:

Talons for future Coupons to be attached to
Definitive Bearer Notes (and dates on which
such Talons mature}:

Details refating to Partly Paid Notes: amount
of each payment comprising the Issue Price
and date on which each payment is to be made
and consequences (if any) of failure to pay,
including any right of the Issuer to forfeit the
Notes and interest due on late payment:

Details relating to Instalment Notes: amount
of each instalment, date on which each
payment is to be made:

Redenomination, renominalisation and
reconventioning provisions:
Consolidation provisions:

Other terms or special conditions:

Governing law:

DISTRIBUTION

36.

37.

(i) If syndicated, names of Managers:
{(ii) Stabilising Manager (if any):

If non-syndicated, name of Dealer:

48

{Temporary Bearer Global Note exchangeable
for a Permanent Bearer Global Note which is
exchangeable {or Definitive Bearer Notes on not
more than 60 days’ notice/at any timefin the
limited circumstances specified in the Permanent
Global Note.]

[Temporary Bearer Giobal Note exchangeable
for Definitive Bearer Notes on not more than
60 days’ notice.}

[Permanent Bearer Global Note exchangeable
for Definitive Bearer Notes on not more than
60 days’ notice/at any timefin the limited
circumstances specified in the Permanent Bearer
Global Note).

[Name and specified offices]
[Yes/No/give details}
(Yes/No] [If yes, set out relevant provisians|

[Not Applicable/give details. Note that this item
relates to the date and place of payment, and not
interest period end dates, to which items 16(ii),
I7(iv) and 19(vii) relate]

[Yes/No. If yes, give details)

[Not Applicable/give details]

{Not Applicable/give details including of any
minimum or maximum instalment amount]

[Not Applicable/The provisions annexed to this
Pricing Supplement apply]

[Not Applicable/The provisions annexed to this
Pricing Suppiement apply]

[Not Applicable/give details including any details
refevant to Other Notes, being Notes of a type not
specifically contemplated elsewhere in this Pricing
Supplement)

[English/please specify]

[Not Applicable/give names)
[Not Applicable/give name)
[Not Applicable/give name]
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38.

Additional selling restrictions:

OPERATIONAL INFORMATION

39.
40.
41.

42.
43.
44,
45.

ISIN Code:
Common Code:

Any clearing system(s) other than Euroclear
and Clearstream, Luxembourg and the
relevant identification number(s):

Delivery:
Changes to the Agent(s) (if any):
Applicable TEFRA Rules:

Additional United States Federal Income Tax
Consequences:

[LISTING APPLICATION

This Pricing Supplement comprises the final terms required to list the issue of Notes described

[Not Applicable/give details)

( ]

( ]
(Not Applicable/give name(s) and number(s))

Delivery [against/free of] payment
( ]

D Rules/Not Applicable

[Not Applicable/give details]

herein pursuant to the Global Debt Issuance Facility of the African Development Bank ]

RESPONSIBILITY
The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in this Pricing Supplement.

Signed on behalf of the Issuer:

By:

Duly Authorised
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GENERAL INFORMATION

1. The establishment of the Facility was authorised by a resolution of the Board of Directors of
the Bank adopted on 3 March 1993. On 16 December 1996 the Board of Directors of the Bank anthorised
an increase in the Facility Amount to US$1,000,000,000 and on 14 December 1998 the Board of Directors
of the Bank authorised a further increase in the Facility Amount to 1J.5.$1,500,000,000. On 12 January
2000 the Board of Directors of the Bank authorised a further increase in the Facility Amount to
US$5$3,000,000,000. By resolutions dated 20 December 2000 and 6 December 2001 the Board of Directors
of the Bank authorised the establishment of an unlimited global debt issuance facility and the issuance of
Notes thereunder.

2. The Notes will not be issued under an indenture, and no trustee is provided for in the Notes.

3. The Bank is not and has not been involved in any litigation, arbitration or administrative
proceedings relating to claims or amounts which are material in the context of the Notes or may have, or
have had during the previous twelve months, a significant effect on its financial position, nor, so far as it is
aware, having made all reasonable enquiries, are any such litigation, arbitration or administration
proceedings pending or threatened.

4. There has been no materjal adverse change in the financial position of the Bank since
31 December 2006,

5. The annual accounts of the Bank for the financial years ended 31 December 2005 and
31 December 2006 have been audited by Deloitte & Touche. The annual accounts of the Bank for the
financial year to 31 December 2006 have on 16 May 2007 been approved by the Board of Governors of
the Bank. The Bank’s auditors for the financial year to 31 December 2007 are KPMG France S.A..

6. For so long as any Notes are outstanding, copies of the following documents may be inspected
free of charge during normal business hours at {and, in the case of items (b), {¢) and (f) obtainable from)
the specified office of the Paying Agent in Luxembourg;

(2) the Dealer Agreement;

(b) the latest Annual Report of the Bank;

(c} the Issuing and Paying Agency Agreement;
(d) the Deed of Covenant;

(¢) each Pricing Supplement relating to a Series of Notes which are listed on the regulated market
of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange;

(f) the Information Memorandum and any supplements thereto; and
(g) the Information Statement and any amendments or supplements thereto.

7. The Notes have been accepted for clearance through Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg. The Bank will apply to Austraciear for approval of each Series of Australian Domestic
Notes to be traded in the Austraclear System. The appropriate codes allocated by Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg for each Series of Notes, together with the relevant International Security
Identification Number (“ISIN’'}, will be contained in the Pricing Supplement relating thereto.
Transactions can be settled between DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg. The relevant
Pricing Supplement shall specify any other clearing system as shall have accepted the relevant Notes for
clearance together with any further appropriate information.

8. The Luxembourg Stock Exchange has allocated to the Facility the number 2260 for listing
purposes.

9. No person asserts any claim of proprietary ownership or exclusive right with respect to any
feature of the tax structure or the tax aspects of the transactions described herein, and the Bank and its
affiliates authorise each of the prospective investors (and each employee, representative, or other agent
of any prospective investor) to disclose to any and all persons, without limitation of any kind, the tax
treatment and tax structure of the transaction and all materials of any kind (including opinions and other
tax analyses) that are provided to the prospective investor relating to such tax treatment and tax
structure.
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10. This Information Memorandum and an

Bank and any Pricing Supplement will be availa
Exchange (www.bourse.lu).
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y supplements thereto. the latest Annual Report of the
ble on the internet website of the Luxembourg Stock
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SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

To:  BNP Paribas
: Morgan Stanicy & Co, Intemational ple
{the Managers)

22 February 2008

Dear Sirs,

African Development Bank (the Bank) proposes, pursuant to an Amended and Restated Dealer Agreement
{the Dealer Agreement, which expression shall include any amendments or supplements thereto or
restatements thereof) dated 6 July 2007 and made between, among others, the Bank and the Dealers party
thereto, to issue USD 500,000,000 2.750 per cent. Global Notes due 25 February 2008 (the Notes). The
Notes are issued as part of the Global Debt Issuance Facility provided for by the Dealer Agreement and are
issued subject to, and with the benefit of, &1l of the provisions of the Dealer Agreement including, without
limitation, the rcpresentations, warranties, undertalkings, indemnities and restrictions of the Bank and the
Dealers contained therein. The terms of the Notes arc as set out in the pricing supplement dated 22 February
2008 attached hereto.

Subject to receipt by the Managers, in form reasonably satisfactory to the Managers, of the documents set out
in the next paragraph, the Bank agrees to issue the Notes and the Managers jointly and severally agree to
subscribe and pay for the Notes on 25 February 2008 (the Closing Date) at the subscription price of 99.765

per cent. (being the issue price of 99.840 per cent. less the combined management and underwriting
commission of 0.075 per cent.) plus, if the Closing Date is postponed, any accrued interest in respect thereof.

The obligation of the Managers to subscribe and pay for the Notes is conditional upon the receipt by the
Managers of the following documentation: '

(2) Opinion of General Counset and Director, Legal Department of the Bank;

() Reliance letter of General Counsel and Director, Legal Department of the Bank to Sullivan &
Cromwell LLP; ’

{c) Legal Opinion of Allen & Overy LLP, English law advisers to the Managers;

{d) Validity Opinion of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP, I_Jnited States law adwisors to the Managers; and
{¢)  Officers (closing) Certificate.

Sub-clauses 4.2(g) and 4.2(h) of the Dealer Agreement shall not apply to this Series of Notes.

Notwithstanding anything herein contained, the Managers or the Bank (after prior consultation with each
other) may, by notice to the Bank or the Managers, as the case may be, given at any time before the time on

the Closing Date when payment would otherwise be due to the Bank hercunder, terminate this Agreement if

in the reasonable opinion of the Managers or the Bank there shall have been such a change in national or
international financial, political or economic conditions or currency exchange rates or exchange controls as
would be likely to prejudice materially the success of the offering and distribution of the Notes. Upon such
notice being given by the Bank or the Manapers, the parties hereto shall (except for the lizbility of the Bank
for the payment of fees, costs and expenses as provided in Clause 10 of the Dealer Agreement) be released
and discharged from their respective obligations under or pursuant to this Agreement.
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in connvetion with the issue and distribution o7 the Notes, BNP Paribas tthe Statiifising Manager) tor any
person acting for the Stabilising Maonager) may over-allol Notes or effect fransactions with a view to
suppiyrting the market price of the Notes at a Jevel higher than that which might etherwise prevail. lHowever,
there is o asserance that the Subilising Manager (or any person seting 1or the Stabilising Managen) will
undertake stabilisation aciion. Aay swbilisation action may begin on or after the date an which wdegquate
puidie disciosure of the ters of the Notes is made and. f begun. may be ended ut any time, but it must end
ne later than the earfier of 30 davs after the issuc Jate of the Notes and 60 day s afier the date of the alletment
of the Notes. Any stabilisation aetion or over-allotment must be conducted by the Stabilising Manager (or
apy porson acting for the Stabilising Manager) in accordance with all zpplicable laws and rles. The
Manayers acknowledge that the Bank has not avthorised the issue of the Notes of a principal amcunt
exceeding USD S00.00¢.010.

This Agreement. as 10 which time shall be of the essence. is governed by, and shall be consiruzd in
accordance with, English taw,

Please confirm, by signing below, that the foregoing correcily scts out the arrangements between us.

Yours faithfully,

THIERRY DE LONGUEMAR
VICE PRESIDENT, FINANCE

We hereby confinm thar the faregning carrectly sets aut the arrangements ageeed between us,

22 February 2008

BNP Paribas

By:

{Dely authorised)

Morgaa Stenley & Co. International pic
By:

{ Duly authorised)

1018521363 M AGAT413.4 2
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In connection with the issue and distribution of the Notes, BNP Paribas (the Stabilising Manager) (or any
persen acting for the Stabilising Manager) may over-allot Notes or effect transactions with a view to
supporting the market price of the Notes at a level higher than that which might otherwise prevail. However,
there is no assurance that the Stabilising Manager {or any person acting for the Stabilising Manager) will
undertake stabilisation action. Any stabilisation action may begin on or after the date on which adequate
public disclosure of the terms of the Notes is made and, if begun, may be ended at any time, but it must end
no later than the earlier of 30 days after the issue date of the Notes and 60 days after the date of the allotment
of the Notes. Any stabiiisation action or over-allotment must be conducted by the Stabilising Manager (or
any pemson acting for. the Stabilising Manager) in accordance with all applicable laws and rules. The
Managers acknowledge that the Bank hag not authorised the issug of the Notes of a principal amount
exceeding USD 500,000,000,

This Agreement, as to which time shall be of the essence, is governed by, and shall be construed in
accordance with, English law. '

Please confirm, by signing below, that the foregoing correctly sets out the arrangements between us.
Yours faithfully,

African Development Bank

THIERRY DE LONGUEMAR
VICE PRESIDENT, FINANCE

We hereby confirm that the foregoing correctly sets out the arrangements agreed between us.
22 February 2008

BNP Paribas

s

(Duly authorised)

Morgaa Stanley & Co. International ple

By:

(Duly authorised)

ANARE. A48 I/M-RNARA 1T A n
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(e)

{f

{q)

(h)
(i)

the subscription agreement dated 22 February 2008 refating ta the Notes (the
"Subscription Agreement’):

the pricing supplement dated 22 February 2008 relating to the Notes {the
"Pricing Supptement): '

the Uniform Fiscal Agency Agreament, effective July 20, 2006, and the letter
agreement, dated July 27, 2006, each between the Bank and the Federal
Reserve Bank of New York, as fiscal agent (together, the “Fiscal Agency
Agreement’):

the legal opinion of Sullivan & Cromwell LLP dated 25 February 2008; and
the legal opinion of Allen & Overy LLP dated 25 February 2008.

| have aiso examined such other documents and made such investigation as | have
considered necessary for the purposes of giving this opinion.

Having exarmined the foregoing, | am of the opinion that:

0

(i)

(i)

{iv)

(v}

in connection with the issue of the Notes, you may rely on the Original Opinion
and the Update Opinion as though: (a) the staterments made in the Qriginal
Opinion and the Update Opinion wers made by me on the date hereof. and (b)
the Original Opinion and the Update Opinion were addressed to the Managers;

the Subscription Agreement has been duly authorised and has been duly
executed and defivered by or on behalf of the Bank and constitutes a valid,
legally binding and enforceable obligation of the Bank and that the performance
thereof is within the capacity and power of the Bank;

the Notes will constitute direct, general and unconditional obligations of the Bank
which (a) rank pari passu among themselves and (b} will at all times rank at least
pari passu with all other outstanding obligations of the Bank except to the extent
that such other outstanding obligations are by their terms expressed to be
subordinated in right of payment;

all authorisations, consents and approvals required under the Bank Agreement
for the execution and delivery of the Subscription Agresment and the Pricing
Supplement, for the issuance of the Notes, and for the payment of the principal
and, where applicable, interest thereon have been given or obtained;

the Notes have been duly issued and delivered in accordance with the Fiscal
Agency Agreement and constitute valid and fegally binding obligations of the
Bank enforceable in accordance with their terms and conditions; and
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(vi) the execution and delivery of the Subscription Agreement and the Pricing
Supplement. the issue of the Notes. the consummation of the transactions
therein contemplated and compliance with the terms thereof do not eanflict with
or result in a breach of any of the terms or provisions of or constitute a default
under, any agreement or instrurnent to which the Bank is a party or to which it or
any of its properties is bound. or infringe the Bank Agreement or any other
existing applicable law, rule. regulation, judgment, order or decree known to me
applying ta ar affecting the Bank or its properties.

| express no opinion as to any agreement, instrument or other document other than as
specified in this opinicn.

This opinion is given solely for the purposes of the issue of the Notes and for the
information of the persons to whom it is addressed and their respective legal advisers,
and may not be relied upon for any other purpose or by any other person. With
respect to the opinion expressed in paragraph (v) above, this opinion letter is also
being furnished as an exhibit o a report of the Bank filed with respect 1o the Notes
pursuant to Regulation AFDB adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission
under Section 9(a) of the United States African Development Bank Act.

In rendering the foregoing opinion, | have relied with respect to mattars of United
Siates law and New York law, upon the aforementioned opinion of Sullivan &

Cromwell LLP and with respect to matters of English law. upon the aforementioned
opinion of Allen & Overy LLP.

Yours faithfully,

Cis

Kalidou GADIO
Acting General Counsel

END
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